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Certification of Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia have been prepared 
in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the 
financial transactions for the financial year ending 30 June 2009 and the financial position as at 30 June 2009.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial statements 
misleading or inaccurate.

G. Thompson	  	 J Harrison-Ward

Chief Finance Officer		  Member of Accountable Authority

24 August 2009		  24 August 2009	

A Skinner

Chairman of Accountable Authority

24 August 2009

Financial Statements

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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				    2009	 2008
			   Note	 $000	 $000

COST OF SERVICES					   
Expenses					   
Employee benefits expense	 4	  119,710 	  106,658  
Supplies and services	 5	  55,549 	  51,310  
Depreciation and amortisation expense	 6	  8,823 	  9,436 
Finance costs	 7	  2,980 	  2,262 
Accommodation expenses	 8	  5,984 	  6,144  
Grants and subsidies	 9	  28,551 	  41,251 
Loss on disposal of non-current assets	 10	  36 	  1  
Other expenses	 11	  2,772 	  1,996  
Total cost of services		   224,405 	  219,058 		

Income					   
Revenue					   
User charges and fees	 12	  172,617 	  165,265 
Commonwealth grants and contributions	 13	  5,207 	  5,950 
Interest revenue	 14	  4,556 	  4,469  
Other revenue 	 15	  4,689 	  8,266 
Total Revenue		    187,069 	  183,950  
Gains					   
Gain on disposal of non-current assets	 10	  162 	  113 
Total Gains		  162 	  113		
Total income other than income from State Government		   187,231 	  184,063 

NET COST OF SERVICES		   37,174 	  34,995 		

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT	 16			 
Service appropriation		   43,942 	  46,631  
Resources received free of charge		   567 	  1,597   
Total income from State Government		    44,509 	  48,228 

SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD		   7,335 	  13,233 

The Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.				  

Income Statement For the year ended 30 June 2009

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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				    2009	 2008
			   Note	 $000	 $000

ASSETS					   
Current Assets					   
Cash and cash equivalents	 17	   79,817 	  59,508 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents	 18	   83 	  87  
Inventories	 19	   8,702 	  8,687  
Receivables	 20	  7,224 	  9,605  
Total current assets		   95,826 	  77,887  

Non-Current Assets			 
Amounts receivable for services	 21	   6,170 	  2,355  
Property, plant and equipment	 22	  239,229 	  225,490 
Intangible assets	 23	  72 	  143  
Other financial assets	 24	  500 	  500 
Total Non-Current Assets		   245,971 	  228,488  	 	

TOTAL ASSETS		   341,797 	  306,375  

LIABILITIES					   
Current Liabilities					   
Payables	 26	  10,832 	  9,381  
Borrowings	 27	  27,729 	  33,174  
Provisions	 28	   12,644 	  10,775  
Total Current Liabilities		   51,205 	  53,330  
Non-Current Liabilities		
Borrowings	 27	   - 	  5,207  
Provisions	 28	  9,902 	  7,624  
Total Non-Current Liabilities		    9,902 	  12,831 

TOTAL LIABILITIES		   61,107 	  66,161  

NET ASSETS		   280,690 	  240,214  

EQUITY	 29	
Contributed equity		   92,863 	  59,319  
Reserves		   76,751 	  77,154  
Accumulated surplus 		    111,076 	  103,741 

TOTAL EQUITY		   280,690 	  240,214 
The Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Balance Sheet As at 30 June 2009

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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				    2009	 2008
			   Note	 $000	 $000

Balance of equity at start of period		    240,214 	  200,193

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY	 29			 
Balance at start of period		   59,319 	  58,363  
Capital contribution		   32,910 	  1,210  
Other contributions by owners		   851 	  490  
Distributions to owners		   (217)	  (744)
Balance at end of period		   92,863 	  59,319 

RESERVES	 29	
Asset revaluation reserve					   
Balance at start of period		    77,154 	  48,119  
(Losses)/Gains from asset revaluation		   (403)	  29,035 
Balance at end of period		   76,751 	  77,154  

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS	 29			 
Balance at start of period		   103,741 	  93,711  
Change in asset capitalisation threshold		  - 	  (3,203)		
Restated balance at start of period		  103,741 	  90,508		

Surplus for the period		   7,335 	  13,233 
Balance at end of period		   111,076 	  103,741  

Balance of equity at end of period		    280,690 	  240,214  	

Total income and expense for the period (a)		   6,932 	  42,268  

(a) The aggregate net amount attributable to each category of equity is: surplus of $7,335,000 less losses from asset  
revaluation of $403,000 (2008: surplus $13,916,000 plus gains from asset revaluation of  $29,035,000).

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.				  

Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 30 June 2009

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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				    2009	 2008
			   Note	 $000	 $000

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT		
Service appropriation		   40,127 	  42,887  
Capital contributions		   32,910 	  1,210  
Holding account drawdowns		   - 	  2,650  

Net cash provided by State Government		   73,037 	  46,747  

Utilised as follows:					   

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES					   
Payments				  
Employee benefits		   (115,378)	  (105,702)
Supplies and services		   (54,499)	  (58,864)
Finance costs		   (2,200)	  (1,653)
Accommodation		   (5,984)	  (6,144)
Grants and subsidies		   (28,551)	  (41,251)
GST payments on purchases		   (10,120)	  (9,987)
Other payments		   (2,750)	  (1,996)
Receipts		
User charges and fees		    174,886 	  164,082  
Commonwealth grants and contributions		   5,207 	  5,462  
Interest received		   4,632 	  4,236  
GST receipts on sales		   914 	  1,272  
GST receipts from taxation authority		   9,206 	  8,715 
Other receipts		   4,689 	  8,266  
Net cash used in operating activities	 30	  (19,948)	  (33,564)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES		
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets		   263 	  116  
Purchase of non-current physical assets		   (22,396)	  (30,536)
Net cash used in investing activities		   (22,133)	  (30,420)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES				  
Proceeds from borrowings		   23,400 	  7,619 
Repayment of borrowings		   (34,051)	  (2,103)
Net cash used in financing activities		    (10,651)	  5,516 
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 		   20,305 	  (11,721)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period		   59,595 	  71,316  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period	 17,18	   79,900 	  59,595  

The Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 30 June 2009

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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1	 Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards

	 General
	� The Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2009 have been 

prepared in accordance with Australian equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards (AIFRS), which comprise a Framework for the Preparation 
and Presentation of Financial Statements (the Framework) and Australian 
Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations).

	� In preparing these financial statements the Authority has adopted, where 
relevant to its operations, new and revised Standards and Interpretations from 
their operative dates as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board 
(AASB) and formerly the Urgent Issues Group (UIG).

	 Early adoption of standards
	� The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or 

Australian Accounting Interpretation unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 
‘Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements’. 
No Standards and Interpretations that have been issued or amended but are not 
yet effective have been early adopted by the Authority for the annual reporting 
period ended 30 June 2009.

2	 Summary of significant accounting policies

	 (a) General statement
	� The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report which 

has been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, 
the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board as applied by 
the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s 
Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.

	� The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative 
provisions governing the preparation of financial statements and take 
precedence over the Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of 
Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board.

			 

�Where modification is required and has a material or significant financial effect upon 
the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation
�The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using 
the historical cost convention, modified by the revaluation of land and buildings which 
have been measured at fair value.

�The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have 
been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded 
to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000).

(c) Reporting entity
�The reporting entity comprises the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western 
Australia.

(d) Contributed equity
�AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned 
Public Sector Entities’ requires transfers, other than as a result of a restructure of 
administrative arrangements, in the nature of equity contributions to be designated 
by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior 
to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital 
contributions (appropriations) have been designated as contributions by owners by 
Treasurer’s Instruction (TI) 955 ‘Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned 
Public Sector Entities’ and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity.

Transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of 
administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the 
transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal. See note 29 ‘Equity’. 

	

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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2	 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

	 (e) Income
	 Revenue recognition
	� Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. 

Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

	 Rendering of services
	� Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by reference to 

the stage of completion of the transaction.

	 Emergency Services Levy
	� The Emergency Services Levy (ESL) funds Western Australia’s fire and emergency 

services. The majority of the ESL is raised and collected by local government 
agencies (LGA) on behalf of the Authority by including it on their council rates 
notices. The ESL is calculated on the Gross Rental Value (GRV) of most urban 
properties, with a fixed rate charge per property in rural and remote areas. The 
Authority raises assessment notices for ESL directly for properties owned by 
the State Government (General Sector) in the first quarter, State Government 
instrumentalities (corporations) for large corporations in the third quarter and 
Local Governments in the second quarter.

	� LGA’s either remit ESL to the Authority on a monthly basis as they collect 
it (Option A), or enter into a memorandum of understanding (Option B) 
authorised by the Minister for Police; Emergency Services; Road Safety and pay 
the ESL they assess to FESA in four quarterly (30%, 30%, 30% and 10%) or one 
annual instalment. The annual payment option is generally taken up by local 
governments that raise only a small amount of ESL and wish to further simplify 
the ESL administrative arrangements.

	� All LGA’s submit a Declaration of Annual Emergency Services Levy Billing 
Assessment Profile Return (Form A) within 14 days of issue of rates notice. 
Revenue is recognised upon the issue of an invoice to the LGA’s.

	 Sale of goods
	� Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods, disposal of other assets and 

the delivery of services to the client when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership control transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably.

	 Interest
	 Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues. 

	

	 Service Appropriations
	� Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at nominal value in the period 

in which the Authority gains control of the appropriated funds. The Authority 
gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited into the 
Authority’s bank account or credited to the holding account held at the Department 
of Treasury and Finance. (See note 16 ‘Income from State Government’).

	 Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions
	� Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Authority obtains control over the 

assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is received.

	� Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are 
recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised when 
a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if 
not donated.

	 Gains
	� Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually recognised on a net basis. 

These include gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some 
revaluations of non-current assets.

	 (f) Borrowing costs

	� Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

	 (g) Property, plant and equipment

	 Capitalisation / Expensing of assets
	� Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised 

as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their 
useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are 
immediately expensed direct to the Income Statement (other than where they 
form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total). 

	 Initial recognition and measurement
	 All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.

	� For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal 
cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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2	 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

	 (g) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement 
of land and buildings and the cost model for all other property, plant and 
equipment. Land and buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated 
depreciation on buildings and accumulated impairment losses. All other items 
of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings 
is determined on the basis of current market buying values determined by 
reference to recent market transactions.  When buildings are revalued by 
reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is 
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount 
restated to the revalued amount.

Where market-based evidence is not available, the fair value of land and 
buildings is determined on the basis of existing use. This normally applies 
where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted. Fair value for 
existing use assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the 
remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, ie. the depreciated 
replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is dependent on using the 
depreciated replacement cost, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated 
depreciation are restated proportionately.

Independent valuations of land and buildings are provided annually by 
the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services) and 
recognised with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not 
differ materially from the asset’s fair value at the balance sheet date.

The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing 
whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated 
useful life. Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence 
does not provide a clear distinction between market type assets and existing 
use assets. See note 22 ‘Property, plant and equipment’ for further information.

Derecognition
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any 
revaluation reserve relating to that asset is retained in the asset revaluation reserve.

Asset Revaluation Reserve
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on 
the revaluation of non-current assets as described in note 22 ‘Property, Plant and 
Equipment’ and note 29 ‘Equity’.

Depreciation/Amortisation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over 
their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future 
economic benefits.

Land and artwork is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using 
the straight-line method, using rates which are reviewed annually.  Estimated useful 
lives for each class of depreciable asset are:

Building		  20 - 40 years
Vehicles                               	   2 - 20 years
Plant and equipment                5 - 10 years

Works of art controlled by the Authority are classified as property, plant and 
equipment, which are anticipated to have indefinite useful lives. Their service potential 
has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting period and so no 
depreciation has been recognised.

(h) Intangible assets
Capitalisation / Expensing of assets 
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated 
intangible assets costing $50,000 or more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the 
assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful lives. Costs incurred below these 
thresholds are immediately expensed direct to the Income Statement.  

All acquired and internally developed intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 
For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the 
date of acquisition. 

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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2	 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
	 (h) Intangible assets (continued)

	� Capitalisation / Expensing of assets (continued) 
	� The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset 

to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

	� Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the 
period of the expected benefit (estimated useful life) on the straight-line basis 
using rates which are reviewed annually. All intangible assets controlled by the 
Authority have a finite useful life and zero residual value.  The expected useful 
lives for each class of intangible asset are:

	 Licences	 up to 10 years
	 Software(a)	 3 to 5 years

	 (a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware.

	 Computer software
�Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, 
plant and equipment. Software that is not an integral part of the related 
hardware is treated as an intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is 
expensed in the year of acquisition.

Web site costs
�Web site costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they 
relate to the acquisition or development of an asset when they may be 
capitalised and amortised. Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during 
the planning phase of a web site, and ongoing costs of maintenance during the 
operating phase are expensed. Costs incurred in building or enhancing a web 
site, to the extent that they represent probable future economic benefits that 
can be reliably measured, are capitalised.

(i) Impairment of assets
�Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets are tested for any 
indication of impairment at each balance sheet date.  Where there is an 
indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the 
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss 
is recognised.  As the Authority is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been 

identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 
fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.

�The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s 
depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or 
where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets 
is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation 
reflects the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s future economic 
benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.

�Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not 
yet available for use are tested for impairment at each balance sheet date 
irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of 
fair value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected 
to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk 
of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market-
based evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated 
replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the recoverable 
amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of 
impairment at each balance sheet date. See note 25 ‘Impairment of assets’ for  
the outcome of impairment reviews and testing. See note 2(o) ‘Receivables’. 

	 (j) Leases
	� The Authority holds operating leases for buildings, office equipment, aerial 

equipment and motor vehicles. Lease payments are expensed on a straight line 
basis over the lease term, as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from 
the leased items and services. See note 5 ‘Supplies and services’ and note 31 
‘Commitments’.	

	 (k) Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost
	� Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that can be reliably 

measured are recognised as income and as assets or expenses as appropriate, 
at fair value. See note 16 ‘Income from State Government’.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009
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2	 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

	 (l) Financial instruments
	 In addition to cash, the Authority has two categories of financial instrument: 
	 • Loans and receivables; and 
	 • Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

	 These have been disaggregated into the following classes:
	 Financial Assets
	 • Cash and cash equivalents
	 • Receivables
	 • Amounts receivable for services
	 • Other financial assets

	 Financial Liabilities
	 • Payables
	 • WATC borrowings

	� Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value 
which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent 
measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

	� The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost 
or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent 
measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material. See 
note 2(r) for ‘Other financial assets’, note 35 ‘Financial instruments’ and note 27 
‘Borrowings’.

	 (m) Cash and cash equivalents
	� For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalent assets 

comprise cash on hand and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk 
of changes in value.  See note 17 ‘Cash and cash equivalents’.

	 (n) Accrued salaries
	� Accrued salaries (see note 26 ‘Payables’) represent the amount due to staff but 

unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the pay date for the last pay period for 
that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year. Accrued 
salaries are settled within a week of the financial year end. The Authority 
considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net fair 
value.

	 (o) Receivables
	� Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an 

allowance for uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of 
receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified 
as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account. The allowance 
for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective 
evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying 
amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. See 
note 2(l) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 20 ‘Receivables’.

	 (p) Amounts receivable for services (Holding account)
	� The Authority receives appropriation funding on an accrual basis that recognises 

the full annual cash and non-cash cost of services. The appropriations are 
paid partly in cash and partly as an asset (Holding account receivable) that is 
accessible on the emergence of the cash funding requirement to cover items 
such as leave entitlements and asset replacement.

	� See note 16 ‘Income from State Government’ and note 21 ’Amounts receivable 
for services’.

	 (q) Inventories
	� Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are 

assigned by the method most appropriate to each particular class of inventory. 
The values have been confirmed through an annual stocktake.

	� Inventories not held for resale are valued at cost unless they are no longer 
required, in which case they are valued at net realisable value. See note 19 
‘Inventories’.	

	 (r) Other financial assets
	 The Authority has classified its investment as a held-to-maturity investment.

	� The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were 
acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial 
recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each balance sheet date. 
Investments not at fair value are initially recognised at cost being the fair value 
of consideration given, including directly attributable transaction costs.

�	

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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2	 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

 	 (r) Other financial assets (continued)
�	� Term deposits with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates are 

classified as held-to-maturity when management has a positive intention and 
ability to hold to maturity. Short-term highly liquid investments are classified as 
cash and cash equivalents. Refer to note 2(m) ‘Cash and cash equivalents’.

	� Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition, over the period to maturity. For 
investments carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in the 
income statement  when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well 
as through the amortisation process.

	� The Authority assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence 
that a financial asset is impaired. See note 24 ‘Other financial assets’.

	 (s) Payables
	� Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Authority becomes 

obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. 
The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally settled 
within 30 days. See note 2(l) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 26 ‘Payables’.

	 (t) Borrowings
	� All loans payable are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the net 

proceeds received. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method. See note 2(l) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 27 
‘Borrowings’.

 	� (u) Provisions 
	� Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised 

where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. See note 28 ‘Provisions’.

	

	 (i) Provisions - Employee benefits
	 Annual leave and long service leave
	� The liability for annual and long service leave expected to be settled within 

12 months after the balance sheet date is recognised and measured at the 
undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 
Annual and long service leave expected to be settled more than 12 months after 
the balance sheet date is measured at the present value of amounts expected to 
be paid when the liabilities are settled. Leave liabilities are in respect of services 
provided by employees up to the balance sheet date.

	� When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected 
future wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer 
superannuation contributions. In addition, the long service leave liability also 
considers the experience of employee departures and periods of service.

	� The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the 
balance sheet date on national government bonds with terms to maturity that 
match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

	� All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as 
current liabilities as the Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

	 Purchased Leave
	� The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees who have 

entered into an agreement to self-fund up to an additional four weeks leave 
per calendar year. The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for 
employees and is measured at the nominal amounts expected to be paid when 
the liabilities are settled. This liability is measured on the same basis as annual 
leave. 

	 Deferred Leave
�	� The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who have 

entered into an agreement to  self-fund an additional twelve months leave in the 
fifth year of the agreement. The provision recognises the value of salary set aside 
for employees to be used in the fifth year. This liability is measured on the same 
basis as annual leave. Deferred leave is reported as a non-current provision until 
the fifth year.
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2	 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

	 (u) Provisions (continued) 
	 (i) Provisions - Employee benefits (continued)

	 Superannuation	
	� Contributions are made to the Fire and Emergency Services Superannuation 

Fund (FESSF) and to the Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) 
to provide benefits for employees and their dependants on retirement, disability 
or death.

	� The Fire and Emergency Services Superannuation Fund is a superannuation fund 
available to employees of the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western 
Australia. Membership is also available for employees of the United Firefighters 
Union of Western Australia, Western Australian Volunteer Fire Brigades 
Association (Inc), and the Fire and Emergency Services Superannuation Board 
(FESSB). The FESSB is a trustee of the fund and is responsible for managing 
the fund in the best interest of all members and for ensuring that the fund is 
managed in accordance with its governing legislation; Fire and Emergency 
Services Superannuation Act 1985 and the Fire and Emergency Services 
(Superannuation Fund) Regulations 1986. The liability for superannuation 
charges is extinguished by payments of employer contributions to the FESSF. 

	� Members can make additional voluntary contributions to an accumulation 
account and are payable in addition to any defined benefit entitlement. 
Contributing members who have reached the age of 55 or completed 30 years 
of contributing membership can also elect to transfer their defined benefit into 
their accumulation account.

	� The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) in accordance with 
legislative requirements administers public sector superannuation arrangements 
in Western Australia.

	� Employees may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension 
scheme now closed to new members or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme 
(GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme also closed to new members.

	� The Authority has no liabilities under the Pension or the GSS Schemes. The 
liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS Scheme 
transfer benefits due to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, 
are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS Scheme obligations are funded by 

concurrent contributions made by the Authority to the GESB. The concurrently 
funded part of the GSS Scheme is a defined contribution scheme as these 
contributions extinguish all liabilities in respect of the concurrently funded GSS 
Scheme obligations.

	� Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not 
members of either the Pension or the GSS Schemes became non-contributory 
members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees 
commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of 
the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). Both of these schemes are accumulation 
schemes. The Authority makes concurrent contributions to GESB on 
behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s 
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. These contributions 
extinguish the liability for superannuation charges in respect of the WSS and 
GESBS Schemes. 

	� The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension and GSS 
Schemes, and is recouped by the Treasurer for the employer’s share.  See note 
2(v) ‘Superannuation expense’.

	 (ii) Provisions - Other
	 Employment on-costs
	� Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not 

employee benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses 
when the employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs 
are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not included as part of the 
Authority’s ‘Employee benefits expense’. The related liability is included in 
‘Employment on-costs provision’. See note 11 ‘Other Expenses’ and note 28 
‘Provisions’.
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	 (v) Superannuation expense
	 The following elements are included in calculating the superannuation expense in the Income Statement:

	� (a) Defined benefit plans - For 2007-08, the change in the unfunded employer’s liability (i.e. current service cost and, actuarial gains and losses) assumed by the Treasurer 
in respect of current employees who are members of the Pension Scheme and current employees who accrued a benefit on transfer from that Scheme to the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme (GSS); and

	� (b) Defined contribution plans - Employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS); the GESB Super Scheme 
(GESBS) and the Fire and Emergency Services Superannuation Fund (FESSF).

Defined benefit plans - For 2007-08, the movements (i.e. current service cost and, actuarial gains and losses) in the liabilities in respect of the Pension Scheme and the GSS 
Scheme transfer benefits are recognised as expenses. As these liabilities are assumed by the Treasurer (refer note 2(u)(i)), a revenue titled ‘Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer’ 
equivalent to the expense is recognised under Income from State Government in the Income Statement. See note 16 ‘Income from State Government’. Commencing in 2008-09, 
the reporting of annual movements in these notional liabilities has been discontinued and is no longer recognised in the Income Statement.

The superannuation expense does not include payment of pensions to retirees, as this does not constitute part of the cost of services provided in the current year.

The GSS Scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting. However, apart from the transfer benefit, it is a defined 
contribution plan for agency purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the agency to GESB extinguishes the agency’s obligations to the 
related superannuation liability.

The Authority also makes employer contributions to the FESSF during the year. The FESSF is a defined benefit scheme for the purpose of employees and is a defined 
contribution plan for the Authority. The concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Authority to the FESSF extinguishes the Authority’s obligations to the 
related superannuation liability.

	 (w) Comparative figures
	� Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the current financial year.
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3	 Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

	 Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
	� The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards and Australian Accounting Interpretations effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or 

after 1 July 2008 that impacted on the Authority:

	� Review of AAS 27 ‘Financial Reporting by Local Governments’, AAS 29 ‘Financial Reporting by Government Departments’ and AAS 31 ’Financial Reporting by Governments’. 
The AASB has made the following pronouncements from its short term review of AAS 27, AAS 29 and AAS 31:

	 AASB 1004 ‘Contributions’;

	 AASB 1050 ‘Administered Items’;

	 AASB 1051 ‘Land Under Roads’;

	 AASB 1052 ‘ Disaggregated Disclosures’

	� AASB 2007-9 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the review of AASs 27, 29 and 31 [AASB 3, AASB 5, AASB 8, AASB 101, AASB 114, AASB 116, 
AASB 127 & AASB 137]; and

	 Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’.

	� The existing requirements in AAS 27, AAS 29 and AAS 31 have been transferred to the above new and revised topic-based Standards and Interpretation. These requirements 
remain substantively unchanged. AASB 1050, AASB 1051 and AASB 1052 do not apply to Statutory Authorities. The other Standards and Interpretation make some 
modifications to disclosures and provide additional guidance, otherwise there is no financial impact.	

	 Voluntary changes in Accounting Policy
	� Treasurer’s Instruction 1101 sets out the effective date for agencies to move their asset capitalisation threshold to $5,000 based on the transition to the Office of Shared 

Services. This represents a voluntary change in accounting policy for the purposes of applying AASB 108 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’. 

	� The asset capitalisation threshold for the Authority has been set to $5,000 for asset recognition under AASB 116 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and AASB 138 ‘Intangible 
Assets’ effective 1 July 2008. 

	 Adjustments relating to each financial statement line items affected are disclosed below:

 

						    

		  		  2008	 2008
				    $000	 $000

	
	 Income Statement					   
	 Supplies and services		   51,310 	  50,535  
	 Depreciation		   9,436 	  9,528 

	 Balance Sheet					   
	 Property, plant and equipment		   225,490 	  229,317  
	 Intangible assets		   143 	  202  
	 Opening balance accumulated surplus		    90,508 	  93,711  

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009
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3	 Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)

	 Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
	� The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or Australian Accounting Interpretation unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 ‘Application of Australian 

Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements’. Consequently, the Authority has not applied the following Australian Accounting Standards and Australian Accounting 
Interpretations that have been issued and which may impact the Authority but are not yet effective. Where applicable, the Authority plans to apply these Standards and 
Interpretations from their application date:

	 Title 			      	Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after

		�  AASB 101 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (September 2007). This Standard has been revised and			   1 January 2009 
will change the structure of the financial statements. These changes will require that owner changes in  
equity are presented separately from non owner changes in equity. The Authority does not expect any  
financial impact when the Standard is first applied.					   
	

		�  AASB 2009-2 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Improving Disclosures about			   1 January 2009
		�  Financial Instruments [AASB 4, AASB 7, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038]’. This Standard amends AASB 7 

and will require enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements and liquidity risk with respect 
to financial instruments. The Authority does not expect any financial impact when the Standard is first 
applied.

	�	  AASB 123 ‘Borrowing Costs’ (June 2007). This Standard has been revised to mandate the capitalisation 			   1 January 2009
		�  of all borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets. 

However, AASB 2009-1 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Borrowing Costs of Not-
for-Profit Public Sector Entities [AASB 1, AASB 111 & AASB 123]’ issued in April 2009 and applicable 
to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, amends revised AASB 123, which 
will allow not-for-profit public sector entities to continue to choose whether to expense or capitalise 
borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets. The Authority already expenses borrowing costs directly 
attributable to buildings and motor vehicles under construction, therefore this will not impact on the 
financial statements when these standards are first applied.

	 Changes in Accounting Estimates
	     �There were no changes in accounting estimates that will have an effect on the current reporting 

period.	
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

					    				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

4	 Employee benefits expense					   
	 Wages and salaries (a)		    88,788 	  80,678  
	 Protective clothing and uniforms		   2,725 	  2,323  
	 Superannuation - defined benefit plans(b) (c )		   - 	  -  
	 Superannuation - defined contribution plans: (d)						    
		  Fire and Emergency Services Superannuation Board		   10,221 	  9,329 
		  Government Employees Superannuation Board		    985 	  850  
	 Long service leave (e)		   4,679 	  1,958 
	 Annual leave (e)		   11,803 	  11,125 
	 Other related expenses		   509 	  395 
			   119,710 	  106,658 		

	 (a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component.

	 (b) �Defined benefit plans include Pension scheme and Gold State (pre-transfer benefit).  
(See note 2(v) ‘Superannuation expense’)

	 (c) �An equivalent notional income is also recognised (see note 16 ‘Income from State Government).  
Commencing in 2008-09, the reporting of notional superannuation expense and equivalent notional  
income has been discontinued. For 2007-08, GESB estimated a negative movement resulting in a nil  
liability. (see note 16 ‘Income from State Government)

	 (d) �Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State, GESB Super Scheme (contributions paid)  
and FESSB Fund (contributions paid).

	 (e)  Includes a superannuation contribution component.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA



Section






 4

   
   

�DI
SC

LO
SU

R
E

S 
A

N
D

 L
E

G
A

L 
C

O
M

PL
IA

N
C

E

58

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

5 	 Supplies and services					   
	 Administration		   3,507 	  3,337  
	 Advertising and promotion expense		   498 	  692 
	 Communication 		   2,773 	  2,204 
	 Consultants and contractors		   12,846 	  11,794  
	 Electricity and water expense		   1,111 	  1,283
	 Insurance premiums and claims		   3,119 	  2,048  
	 Leases		   14,046 	  13,141
	 Maintenance 		   14,809 	  13,969  
	 Travel 		   2,840 	  2,842  
			    55,549 	  51,310  		
6 	 Depreciation and amortisation expense					   
	 (a) Depreciation
	 Buildings		   3,243 	  2,937  
	 Vehicles		   4,658 	  4,594 
	 Plant & equipment		     850 	  1,791  
	 Total depreciation		       8,751 	  9,322 		

	 (b) Amortisation					   
	 Intangible assets		         72 	  114 

	 Total depreciation and amortisation		              8,823 	  9,436 

7 	 Finance costs					   
	 Interest paid		     2,980 	  2,262 

8 	 Accommodation expenses				  
	 Lease rentals		      1,567 	  1,343 
	 Repairs and maintenance		     4,417 	  4,801  
			    5,984 	  6,144 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA



Section 4     DISCLOSURES AND  LEGAL COMPLIANCE 59

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

9 	 Grants and subsidies				  
	� Emergency Service Levy grants paid in accordance with the provisions of the Fire and Emergency 

Services Authority of Western Australia Act 1998 and the Local Government Manual for Capital and 
Operating Grants:

	 - Local Governments		       17,780 	  15,983 
	 - Private Fire Brigades		   124 	  112 

	� Natural Disaster grants paid in accordance with the Western Australian Natural Disaster Relief Arrangements;  
Natural Disaster Mitigation Program; and All West Australians Reducing Emergencies grant (AWARE).	  7,632 	  22,299 

	� Grants and subsidies paid to volunteer establishments and external bodies in line with approved schemes,  
agreements and statutes encompassing the Association of Volunteer Bush Fire Brigades Western Australia  
Inc, State Emergency Services Volunteer Association of Western Australia Inc, Volunteer Marine Rescue  
of Western Australia Inc, Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc and Western Australian Volunteer Fire  
and Rescue Services Inc.		   3,015 	  2,857 

			    28,551 	  41,251 	

10	Net gain / (loss) on disposal of non-current assets			 
	 Costs of disposal of non-current assets				  
	 Vehicles		   137 	  3 
	 Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 				  
	 Vehicles		   263 	  116 
	 Loss on disposal of non-current assets		    (36)	  (1)
	 Gain on disposal of non-current assets		     162 	  113 
	 Net gain on disposal of non-current assets		      126 	  112 
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

11 Other expenses					   
	 Doubtful debts expense		       22 	  - 
	 Employment on-costs (a)		      2,633 	  1,904  
	 Ex-gratia payments		      12 	  - 
	 Other (b)		    105 	  92 
			    2,772 	  1,996 
	� (a) Includes worker’s compensation insurance and other employment on-costs.  The on-costs liability 

associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 28 
‘Provisions’.  Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are employment 
benefits and are not included in employment on-costs. (See also note 4 ‘Employee benefits expense’)

	 (b) Audit fees, see also note 37 ‘Remuneration of auditor’.

12	User charges and fees				  
	 User charges		     3,739 	  4,326  
	 Emergency services levy		    168,878 	  160,939 
			    172,617 	  165,265 

13	Commonwealth grants and contributions
	 Capital		   - 	  960 
	 Recurrent		   4,906 	  4,874 
	 Other		   301 	  116 		
			     5,207 	  5,950 
	� Each year Commonwealth grants are received for various purposes including non repayable grants that 

contribute towards FESA operations such as the State Support Package, Aerial Fire Fighting and the 
Indian Ocean Territories. Contributions are also received for specific purpose grants such as the National 
Disaster Mitigation Program grants (NDMP) and research/employment projects.

	� An amount of $1,331,735 was received in 2008/09 for the Natural Disaster Mitigation Program (NDMP) of 
which $397,500 remains unexpended as at 30 June 2009. NDMP funds natural disaster mitigation works, 
measures and related activities that contribute to safer and sustainable communities that are better able 
to withstand the effects of natural disasters. 

14	Interest revenue
	 Interest from term deposits		      4,434 	  4,365  
	 Interest from Emergency Services Levy		      122 	  104 
			              4,556 	  4,469 
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

15	Other revenue
	 Employee and volunteer cost recovery		    1,807 	  1,540  	
	 Sponsorship and donations		         517 	  814 	
	 Non Reciprocal contributed assets		        770 	  3,603  	
	 Grants		        204 	  1,811  	
	 General		   1,391 	  498  	
			    4,689 	  8,266 	

16	Income from State Government
	 Appropriation received during the year:					   
	 Service Appropriation (a)		   43,942 	  46,631   	

	 Resources received free of charge (b)					   
	 Determined on the basis of estimates provided by: 				  
		  Western Australian Land Information Authority		    559 	  1,586  

Department for Planning and Infrastructure		    8 	  11  	

			     44,509 	  48,228  	

	� (a) Service appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting the net cost of services delivered.  The 
appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset).  The receivable (holding 
account) comprises the depreciation expense for the year and any agreed increase in leave liability during 
the year.

	� (b) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal cost, the Authority 
recognises revenues equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those services that 
can be reliably measured and which would have been purchased if they were not donated, and those 
fair values shall be recognised as assets or expenses, as applicable. Where the contribution of assets or 
services are in the nature of contributions by owners, the Authority makes an adjustment direct to equity.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA



Section






 4

   
   

�DI
SC

LO
SU

R
E

S 
A

N
D

 L
E

G
A

L 
C

O
M

PL
IA

N
C

E

62

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

17	Cash and cash equivalents
	 Current						    
	 Cash at bank		       19,747 	  15,433 	
	 Short-term investments		   60,000 	  44,000 	
	 Cash on hand and advances		       70 	  75  	
			    79,817 	  59,508 
	 See note 2(m) ‘Cash and cash equivalents’

18	Restricted cash and cash equivalents			   		
	 Current						    
	 Gift fund (a)		   45 	  52  	
	 Rental property bonds (b)		   38 	  35  	
			    83 	  87 
	� (a) Employees make a gold coin donation for a dress down day. The Gift fund makes an annual donation  

to a nominated charity. 

	 (b) These are bonds held as part of the Government Regional Officers’ Housing (GROH) tenancy agreement.  
	 They apply to all tenants moving into GROH properties.

19	Inventories					   
	 Current						    
	 Inventories held for consumption (a)		    1,540 	  1,316  
	 Inventories held for distribution (b)		                   7,162 	  7,371  	
			    8,702 	  8,687  	

	� (a)  Inventories held for consumption are measured at cost using the average cost method.

	� (b) Inventories held for distribution represent fire appliances under construction as part of the Emergency  
Services Levy capital grants process. These inventories are measured at cost.

	 See note 2(q) ‘Inventories’.		
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

20	Receivables

	 Current
	 Receivables 		    5,224 	  7,550 
	 Allowance for impairment of receivables		    (26)	  (4)
	 Prepayments		        612 	  619  
	 Interest receivable		         157 	  233  
	 GST receivable		   1,257 	  1,207 
	 Total Current		   7,224 	  9,605 

	 Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:				  

	 Balance at start of year		       4 	  4 
	 Doubtful debts expense recognised in the income statement		        22 	  - 
	 Balance at end of year		            26 	  4 		

	 The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to receivables. 

	 See note 2(o) ‘Receivables’ and note 35 ‘Financial instruments’.			 
	

21	Amounts receivable for services
	 Non-current		                6,170 	  2,355 
			    6,170 	  2,355  

	� Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. See note 2(p) ‘Amounts receivable for 
services (Holding account)’. It is restricted in that it can only be used for asset replacement or payment 
of leave liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

22	Property, plant and equipment				  

	 Land			 
	 At fair value (a)		   70,019 	  67,204  

	 Buildings
	 At fair value (a)		  87,071 	  87,210  
	 Accumulated depreciation		    - 	  (24)
			     87,071 	  87,186 
	 Buildings under construction				  
	 Construction costs		     18,110 	  14,019  

	 Vehicles					   
	 At cost		   71,640 	  64,051  
	 Accumulated depreciation		      (33,576)	  (30,328)

			    38,064 	  33,723 

	 Vehicles under construction				  
	 Construction costs		    10,197 	  10,827  

	 Plant and equipment				  
	 At cost		   10,649 	  9,808 
	 Accumulated depreciation		      (5,749)	  (4,760)
			    4,900 	  5,049  
	 Plant and equipment under construction				  
	 Construction costs		      10,710 	  7,324  

	 Works of Art					   
	 At cost		   158 	  158 

			    239,229 	  225,490 
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

22	Property, plant and equipment (continued)

	� (a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2008 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). The valuations were performed during the year 
ended 30 June 2009 and recognised at 30 June 2009. In undertaking the revaluation, fair value was determined by reference to market values for land: $20,211,350 and buildings: 
$2,602,900. Where there is no market based evidence of fair value because of the specialised nature of the asset (fire stations), fair value of land: $49,062,900 and buildings: 
$80,230,210 was determined on the basis of current use and depreciated replacement cost. See note 2(g) ‘Property, plant and equipment’. 

	 Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out below.

								        Plant and
		   		  Buildings		  Vehicles		  equipment
				    under		  under	 Plant and	 under	 Works		
		  Land	 Buildings	 construction	 Vehicles	 construction	 equipment	 construction	 of Art	 Total
		  $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	
	 2009										        
	 Carrying amount at start of year	  67,204 	  87,186 	  14,019 	  33,723 	  10,827 	  5,049 	  7,324 	  158 	  225,490	
	 Additions	  814 	  1,375 	  8,845 	  379 	  8,625 	  317 	  3,389 	  - 	  23,744	
	 Transfers	   16 	  4,357 	  (4,754)	  9,255 	  (9,255)	  384 	  (3)	  - 	 -	
	 Disposals (a)	  (217)	  - 	  - 	  (635)	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  (852)	
	 Revaluation increments/decrements	  2,202 	  (2,604)	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  (402)	
	 Depreciation	  - 	  (3,243)	  - 	  (4,658)	  - 	  (850)	  - 	  - 	  (8,751)

	 Carrying amount at end of year	    70,019 	  87,071 	  18,110 	  38,064 	  10,197 	  4,900 	  10,710 	  158 	  239,229 

	 2008	
	 Carrying amount at start of year	  45,021 	  78,853 	  3,057 	  32,502 	  7,110 	  6,070 	  2,711 	  158 	  175,482 	
	 Additions	  1,647 	  2,067 	  11,656 	  75 	  9,462 	  1,530 	  5,367 	  - 	  31,804 	
	 Transfers	  - 	  1,448 	  (694)	  5,745 	  (5,745)	  - 	  (754)	  - 	  - 	
	 Disposals (a)	  (189)	  (555)	  - 	  (3)	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  (747)	
	 Change in asset capitalisation	  - 	  - 	  - 	  (2)	  - 	  (761)	  - 	  - 	  (763)	
	 Revaluation increments	  20,725 	  8,310 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  29,035 	
	 Depreciation	  - 	  (2,937)	  - 	  (4,594)	  - 	  (1,790)	  - 	  - 	  (9,321)

	 Carrying amount at end of year	   67,204 	  87,186 	  14,019 	  33,723 	  10,827 	  5,049 	  7,324 	  158 	  225,490 

(a) Represents land and buildings transferred to other agencies. See also note 29 ‘Equity’.	
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

23	Intangible assets					   
	 Computer software				  
	 At cost		   1,522 	  1,538 
	 Accumulated amortisation		     (1,450)	  (1,395)
			     72 	  143 
	 Trademarks					   
	 At cost		   - 	  -
			    72 	  143 
	 Reconciliations:					   
	 Computer software					   
	 Carrying amount at start of year		    143 	  122  
	 Additions		     - 	  160 
	 Amortisation expense		     (71)	  (114)
	 Change in asset capitalisation threshold		     - 	  (25)
	 Carrying amount at end of year		   72 	  143 

	 Trademarks					   
	 Carrying amount at start of year		       - 	  22 
	 Additions		   - 	  - 
	 Change in asset capitalisation threshold		   - 	  (22)	
	 Carrying amount at end of year		    - 	  -  
						    

24	Other financial assets				  
	 Non-current				  
	 Held-to-maturity investments (see note 2(r) ‘Other financial assets’)		           500 	                     500 

25	Impairment of assets				  
	 There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at 30 June 2009. 
	 See note 2(i) ‘Impairment of assets’.
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

				   				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

	
26	Payables					   
	 Current 
	 Trade payables		      7,694 	  7,208  
	 Accrued Interest		              1,390 	  610 
	 Accrued salaries		                    1,659 	  1,472  
	 GST payable		                        89 	  91 
			     10,832 	  9,381 

	 See note 2(s) ‘Payables’, note 2(n) ‘Accrued salaries, note 33 ‘Events occurring after the balance sheet  
	 date’ and note 35 ‘Financial instruments’. 

27	Borrowings					   
	 Current				  
	 Western Australian Treasury Corporation Loans		   27,729 	  33,174  

	 Non-current					   
	 Western Australian Treasury Corporation Loans		           - 	  5,207  

	� The funds have been advanced under the Western Australian Treasury Corporation’s Portfolio Lending 
Arrangements. Under the terms and conditions of these arrangements the Authority makes quarterly 
payments of capital and interest. The capital is repaid according to a fixed repayment schedule, while 
interest is variable. See note 2(t) ‘Borrowings’ and note 33 ‘Events occurring after the balance sheet date’.

28	Provisions					   
	 Current				  
	 Employee benefits provision				  
	 Annual leave (a)		       6,165 	  5,050 
	 Long service leave (b)		         4,814 	  4,473  
	 Deferred salary scheme (Note 2(u)(i) ‘Provisions employee benefits’)		          9 	  68 
			     10,988 	  9,591 
	 Other provisions					   
	 Employment on-costs (c)		      1,656 	  1,184 

			     12,644 	  10,775  
	

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA



Section






 4

   
   

�DI
SC

LO
SU

R
E

S 
A

N
D

 L
E

G
A

L 
C

O
M

PL
IA

N
C

E

68

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

28	Provisions (continued)
	 Non - current					   
	 Employee benefits provision		    		
	 Long service leave (b)		  8,857 	  6,904  
	 Deferred salary scheme (Note 2(u)(i) ‘Provisions employee benefits’) 		      68 	  - 
								      
	 Other provisions					   
	 Employment on-costs (c)		     977 	  720 

			       9,902 	  7,624   

	� (a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement 
of the liabilities will occur as follows:

	 Within 12 months of balance sheet date		     4,542 	  3,747 
	 More than 12 months after balance sheet date		           1,623 	  1,303 
			    6,165 	  5,050 
	� (b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right 

to defer settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet date. Assessments indicate that actual 
settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows:

	 Within 12 months of balance sheet date		   2,142 	  2,194  
	 More than 12 months after balance sheet date		        11,529 	  9,184 
			    13,671 	  11,378 

	� (c) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment 
on-costs including workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected 
future payments. The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is 
disclosed in note 11 ‘Other expenses’.

	 Movements in other provisions				  
	 Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below.

	 Employment on-cost provision				  
	 Carrying amount at start of year		                1,904 	  2,030 
	 Additional provisions recognised		                      729 	  (126) 
	 Carrying amount at end of year		                    2,633 	  1,904 
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				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

29	Equity
	� Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Authority. The Government holds the 

equity interest in the Authority on behalf of the community. The asset revaluation reserve represents that 
portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.

	 Contributed equity				  
	 Balance at the start of the year		     59,319 	  58,363 

	 Contributions by owners				  
	 Capital contribution (a)		                 32,910 	  1,210 
	 Transfer of net assets from other agencies (b)		  851 	  490 
		  Lot 1710 Gordon St, Narrogin transferred to the Authority under Management Order		
		  Lot 1445 Exmouth transferred to the Authority under Management Order		
		  Lot 357 Wickham Drive, Wickham transferred to the Authority under Management Order		
		  Lot 15515 Queen Elizabeth Ave, Vasse transferred to the Authority under Management Order		
		  Lot 3162 Frederic St, Broome transferred to the Authority under Management Order		
		  25 Rowlands St, Beacon transferred to the Authority under Management Order		
		  Lot 3000 & Lot 311, 11 & 15 Leahy St, Dalwallinu transferred to the Authority under Management Order		

		

	
	 Total contributions by owners		            33,761 	  1,700 
							     
	 Distributions to owners				  
	 Transfer of net assets to other agencies (b)		  (217)	  (744)			 
		  Lot 784 Cnr Morgans St & Moir Ravensthorpe transferred to Department of Planning and Infrastructure				  

Lot 1896 Yunderup Road South Yunderup transferred to Department of Planning and Infrastructure				  
Lot 176-177 Glass St Kalbarri transferred to Department of Planning and Infrastructure		  		

	 Balance at end of year		               92,863 	  59,319 
	 �(a)  Under the Treasurer’s Instruction TI 955 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities’ Capital 

Contributions (appropriations) have been designated as contributions by owners in accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038 
‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’.

	� (b)  Under TI 955, non-discretionary (non-reciprocal) transfers of net assets between State Government agencies have been 
designated as contributions by owners in accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038, where the transferee agency accounts for a  
non-discretionary (non-reciprocal) transfer of net assets as a contribution by owners and the transferor agency accounts for the transfer 
as a distribution to owners.
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

	
				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

	
29	Equity (continued)
	 Reserves						    
	 Asset revaluation reserve				  
	 Balance at start of year		        77,154 	  48,119  
	 Net revaluation increments/(decrements):						    
		  Buildings		                   (2,605)	  8,310 

Land		   2,202 	  20,725 
	 Balance at end of year		         76,751 	  77,154 

	 Accumulated surplus 				  
	 Balance at start of year		     103,741 	  93,711  
	 Change in asset capitalisation threshold		    - 	  (3,203)
	 Result for the period		             7,335 	  13,233 
	 Balance at end of year		             111,076 	  103,741 
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				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

 
30	Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
	 Reconciliation of cash
	� Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the related 

items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

	 Cash and cash equivalents		  79,817 	  59,508	
	 Restricted cash and cash equivalents		       83 	  87 
			   79,900 	  59,595
	 See note 17 ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ and note 18 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents. 
					   
	 Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows used in operating activities
	 Net cost of services		              (37,174)	  (34,995)		
	 Non-cash items:						    
	 Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 6)		      8,823 	  9,436  
	 Net (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment (note 10)		                (126)	  (112)
	 Resources received free of charge (note 16)		              567 	  1,597  
	 Doubtful debt expense (note 11)		                          22 	  -  		

(Increase) / decrease in assets:				  
Current receivables		        2,409 	  (1,481)
Current inventories		         (16)	  (2,413)
Non-current assets		                  - 	  (179)		

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities:				  
Current payables		            1,453 	  (5,970)
Current provisions		                 1,869 	  347  

	 Non-current provisions		                       2,277 	  573 

	 Change in GST in receivables/payables 		                      (52)	  (367)	

	 Net cash (used in) operating activities		                 (19,948)	  (33,564)
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

31	Commitments					   
	 Capital expenditure commitments
	� Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure additional to the amounts 

reported in the financial statements, are payable as follows:

	 Within 1 year		        69,585 	  38,790 
	 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years		                70,617 	  101,990 
	 Later than 5 years		                  23,320 	  43,137 

			     163,522 	  183,917  
	 The capital commitments include amounts for:				  

	 Buildings		   93,903 	  88,793  
	 Motor vehicles		          48,745 	  66,826  
	 Plant and equipment		                  20,874 	  28,298 

			    163,522 	  183,917 
	 Lease commitments				  
	�� Commitments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases contracted for at the balance sheet  

date but not recognised in the financial statements are payable as follows:
	 Within 1 year		           6,823 	  8,042  
	 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years		                 13,099 	  16,318 
	 Later than 5 years		                 11 	  1,122  

			    19,933 	  25,482 

	 The Authority has various operating leases, the most significant being:
	� The provision of Rotary Wing Aircraft Rescue and Medical Transport Services is a non-cancellable lease 

with a five year term, with rent payable monthly.  An option exists at the end of the five year term for an 
additional 2 x 2 years extension option and a further one year final extension. The Authority has since 
exercised the first option to extend the contract to October 2010.

	 These commitments are all inclusive of GST.

	 See note 2(j) ‘Leases’.
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32	Contingent liabilities and contingent assets			 

	 Contingent liabilities			 
	 In addition to the liabilities included in the financial statements, there is the following contingent liability:				  

	 Contaminated sites
Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Authority is required to report known and suspected contaminated sites to the Department of Environment and Conservation 
(DEC). In accordance with the Act, DEC classifies these sites on the basis of the risk to human health, the environment and environmental values. Where sites are classified as 
contaminated - remediation required or possibly contaminated - investigation required, the Authority may have a liability in respect of investigation or remediation expenses.

In 2006/07 the Authority reported 1 contaminated site to DEC. The site is a former drum storage area at the FESA Training Centre located at Dundas Road Forrestfield. The 
Authority is unable to assess the likely outcome of the classification process, and accordingly, it is not practicable to estimate the potential financial effect or to identify the 
uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflows. Whilst there is no possibility of reimbursement of any future expenses that may be incurred in the remediation of 
this site, the Authority has applied and received funding from the Contaminated Sites Management Account to undertake further investigative work and may apply for funding 
from the Contaminated Sites Management Account to meet remediation costs that may be required.

In 2007/08, the tender to select a qualified consultant to undertake a detailed site investigation commenced and subsequently awarded in 2008/09. The detailed site 
investigation is currently in progress. The next phase is for a risk assessment plan together with a health management plan to be incorporated in the defined scope of works for 
remedial rectification which will be advertised for public tender.

33	Events occurring after the balance sheet date
The Authority’s Western Australian Treasury Corporation borrowings totalling $27,729,450 has been repaid in July 2009. The Authority received funding from the Consolidated 
Account to make the repayment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

34	Explanatory statement
Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense are shown below. Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10%.

Significant variances between estimated and actual result for 2009					   
			   2009	 2009		
			   Estimate 	 Actual 	 Variation	
			   $000	 $000	  $000

Depreciation and amortisation expense		    11,147 	  8,823 	  (2,324)
Finance costs		      1,607 	  2,980 	  1,373 
Grants and subsidies		    22,639 	  28,551 	  5,912 	
Other expenses		     4,404 	  2,738 	  (1,666) 

Commonwealth grants and contributions		     3,551 	  5,207 	  1,656 
Interest revenue		     2,500 	  4,556	  2,056 
Other revenue		    1,344 	  4,689	  3,345  	
Service appropriation		    27,977 	  43,942	  15,965 

Depreciation and amortisation expense
	� The variance is mostly due to slower than anticipated progress in the construction 

of new facilities resulting in lower depreciation charges.

Finance costs
The variance largely reflects the financial interest payment associated with the 
early retirement of the Authoritys borrowings as part of the State Governments 
debt reduction strategy.

Grants and subsidies
The variance is primarily related to payments made under the Natural Disaster 
Relief and Restoration Arrangements (NDRRA) administered on behalf of the State 
Government. Outlays on NDRRA are recouped by way of supplementary funding 
from the State Government.

Other expenses
The variance is primarily due to the different classification of employee on-costs 
between actual and estimated results. 

Commonwealth grants and contributions
The variance is largely due to the Authority as the nominated lead agency for 
the Natural Mitigation Disaster Program being responsible for the distribution 
of Commonwealth funds to the various eligible agencies. The Authority acts as a 
conduit for the payment process.

Interest revenue
The variance is mainly due to implementing improved investment and cashflow 
strategies.  

Other revenue
The variance is attributable to the discount received for the early repayment of the 
Authority’s borrowings as part of the State Governments debt reduction strategy.

Service appropriation
The variance is primarily due to approved supplementary funding for the NDRRA, 
wildfire suppression and State Emergency Services incident responses.
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34	Explanatory statement (continued) 

Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10%.			 

Significant variances between actual results for 2008 and 2009											         

			   2009	 2008	 Variation	
			   $000	 $000	  $000

Employee benefits expense		   119,710 	  106,658 	  13,052 
Finance Costs		     2,980 	  2,262 	  718  
Grants and subsidies		    28,551 	  41,251	  (12,700)
Loss on disposal of non-current assets		   36 	  1 	  35 
Other expenses		   2,772 	  1,996	  777 
Commonwealth grants and contributions		     5,207 	  5,950 	  (743) 
Interest revenue		   4,556 	  4,469	  87 
Other revenue 		    4,689 	  8,266 	  (3,577)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets		   162 	  113 	  49 
Resources received free of charge		    567 	  1,597	  (1,030)

Employee benefit expense
	� The variance is mainly due to an increase in costs associated with the United 

Firefighters Union Enterprise Bargaining Agreement and the Government Officers 
Salaries, Allowances and Conditions General Agreement.

Finance costs
The variance largely reflects the financial interest payment associated with the 
early retirement of the Authoritys borrowings as part of the State Governments 
debt reduction strategy.

Grants and subsidies
The value is directly related to payments made under the Natural Disaster Relief 
and Restoration Arrangements (NDRRA) administered on behalf of the State 
Government.

Loss on disposal of non-current assets
The variance is due to the disposal of an increased number of fire appliances in 
2008/09.

Other expenses
The variance is largely attributable to an increase in the employment on-costs.

Commonwealth grants and contributions
	� The variance is due to no Commonwealth capital funding being received in 

2008/09.

	 Other revenue
The variance is mainly attributable to the transfer of Lot 23/24 Wandeara Crescent 
Mundaring (a collocated premise) to the Authority in 2007/08.

Gain on disposal of non-current assets
The variance is due to the disposal of an increased number of fire appliances in 
2008/09.

Resources received free of charge
The variance is largely due to a reduction in services required by Landgate.	
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

35	Financial instruments
	 (a) Financial risk management objectives and policies			 

Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and cash equivalents, short-term deposits, borrowings from the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC), 
receivables and payables. The Authority has limited exposure to financial risks. The Authority’s overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks identified below.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Authority’s receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Authority. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any provisions for 
impairment as shown in the table at note 35(c) ‘Financial instruments disclosures’ and note 20 ‘Receivables’.

Credit risk associated with the Authority’s financial assets is minimal. For receivables other than government, the Authority trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. 
The Authority has policies in place to ensure that sales of services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an 
ongoing basis with the result that the Authority’s exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the balance sheet date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.

During 2008/09, the Authority has elected to adopt the Commonwealth Government Guarantee Scheme for all term deposits to minimise its exposure to credit risk.

Allowance for impairment of financial assets is calculated based on objective evidence such as observable data indicating changes in client credit ratings. For financial assets 
that are either past due or impaired, refer to note 35(c) ‘Financial instrument disclosures’.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Authority is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Authority is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal 
course of business.

The Authority has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are 
available to meet its commitments.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as interest rates will affect the Authority’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Authority 
does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks. The Authority’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relate primarily to the 
long-term debt obligations and short-term investments. The Authority’s borrowings are all obtained through the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) and are at 
fixed rates with varying maturities. The risk is managed by WATC through portfolio diversification and variation in maturity dates. The Authority currently holds short-term highly 
liquid investments held in various Approved Deposit Taking Institutions (ADI). The Authority monitors the credit ratings of ADI’s regularly to minimise its market risk. The risk is 
managed through product diversification and variation in maturity dates. Other than as detailed in the interest rate sensitivity analysis table at Note 35(c), the Authority is not 
exposed to interest rate risk other than WATC borrowings and short-term investments.
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35	Financial instruments (continued)
	 (b) Categories of Financial Instruments

In addition to cash, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the balance sheet date are as follows:	

				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

	
	 Financial Assets		

Cash and cash equivalents		    79,817 	  59,508  
Restricted cash and cash equivalents		     83 	  87  
Held to maturity investments		  500 	                     500
Loans and receivables (a)		   11,367 	  9,901 

Financial Liabilities				  
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (b)		  38,472 	  47,671  

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST payable to the ATO (statutory receivable).
(b) The amount of payables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory payable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

35	Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Financial Instrument Disclosures															             
Credit Risk and Interest Rate Exposures

�The following table discloses the Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk, interest rate exposures and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Authority’s maximum exposure 
to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired 
and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Authority. 

The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds.

The Authority does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in them being past due or impaired.

Interest rate exposures and ageing analysis of financial assets (a)

			   	Interest rate exposure			                         Past due but not impaired		
		  Weighted	 Carrying	 Variable	 Fixed	 Non-Interest 	 Up to 3	 3 - 12 	 1-2	 2- 3	 3-4	 4-5	 More	 Impaired	
 		  Average Effective	 Amount	 interest	 interest 	 Bearing 	 months	 months 	 Years	 Years	 Years	 Years	 than 5	 financial 	
		  Interest Rate		  rate	 rate								        years	 assets
	 	 %	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000
	 Financial Assets
	 2009												          
	 Cash and cash equivalents	             3.31 	  79,817 	  19,817 	  60,000 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	
	 Restricted cash and cash equivalents	  3.31 	  83 	  83 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 
	 Receivables (a)	  -   	  5,966 	  - 	  - 	  5,966 	  824 	  1,162 	  184 	  50 	  20 	  21 	  3 	  - 
	 Amounts receivable for services	  -   	  6,170 	  - 	  - 	  6,170 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 
	 Other financial assets	  3.98 	  500 	  500 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  -

			    92,536 	  20,400 	  60,000 	  12,136 	  824 	  1,162 	  184 	  50 	  20 	  21 	  3 	  - 

2008										        
	 Cash and cash equivalents	              7.89 	  59,508 	  15,508 	  44,000 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	
	 Restricted cash and cash equivalents	  7.89 	  87 	  87 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	
	 Receivables (a)	  -   	  8,398 	  - 	  - 	  8,398 	  2,108 	  1,892 	  310 	  23 	  22 	  3 	  - 	  - 	
	 Amounts receivable for services	  -   	  2,355 	  - 	  - 	  2,355 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  -  
	 Other financial assets	        7.89 	  500 	  500 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  -      

		    	  70,848 	  16,095 	  44,000 	  10,753 	  2,108 	  1,892 	  310 	  23 	  22 	  3 	  - 	  - 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST payable to the ATO (statutory receivable).								      
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35	Financial instruments (continued)						    
	 (c) Financial Instrument Disclosures (continued)				  

	 Liquidity Risk 
	� The following table details the contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities. The contractual maturity amounts are representative of the undiscounted amounts at the 

balance sheet date. The table includes interest and principal cash flows.  An adjustment has been made were material.
								      
	 Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial liabilities 

		  Interest rate exposure	                Maturity Dates		
		  Weighted	 Carrying 	 Variable	 Non-Interest 	 Adjustment 	 Total	 Up to 3	 3 - 12 	 1-2	 2- 3	 3-4	 4-5	 More	
 		  Average Effective	 amount	 interest	 Bearing 	 for	 nominal 	 months	 months 	 Years	 Years	 Years	 Years	 than 5	
		  Interest Rate		  rate		  discounting 	 amount							       years
	 	 %	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000
	 Financial Liabilities
	 2009												          
	 Payables	              -   	  10,743 	  -   	  10,743 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	
 	 WATC loans	 5.96 	  27,729 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  27,729 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  27,729

			     38,472 	  - 	  10,743 	  - 	  27,729 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  27,729 

2008										        
	 Payables	               -   	  9,290 	  -   	  9,290 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  -  	
	 WATC loans	  6.69 	  38,381 	  -   	  -   	  - 	  38,381 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  38,381 

			      47,671 	  -   	  9,290 	  - 	  38,381 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  38,381 

	 	The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

35	Financial instruments (continued)						    
	 (c) Financial Instrument Disclosures (continued)				  

	 Interest rate sensitivity analysis
	� The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Authority’s financial assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date on the surplus for the period 

and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.				  
				  

		  Carrying	                     -1 % Change 	   	  +1 % Change 	
		   amount 	  Profit 	  Equity 	  Profit 	  Equity 	
		   $000	  $000	  $000	  $000	  $000	
	 2009 
	 Financial Assets							     
	 Cash and cash equivalents	        79,817 	  (798.2)	  (798.2)	  798.2 	  798.2  		
	 Restricted cash and cash equivalents	  83 	  (0.8)	  (0.8)	  0.8 	  0.8  	
	
	 Financial Liabilities						    
	 WATC loans	    27,729 	  277.3 	  277.3 	  (277.3)	  (277.3)

	 Total Increase (Decrease)		     (521.7)	  (521.7)	 521.7 	  521.7 

		  Carrying	                     -1 % Change 	   	          +1 % Change 	
		   amount 	  Profit 	  Equity 	  Profit 	  Equity 	
		   $000	  $000	  $000	  $000	  $000

	 2008							     
	 Financial Assets							     
	 Cash and cash equivalents	        59,508 	  (595.1)	  (595.1)	  595.1 	  595.1 	
	 Restricted cash and cash equivalents	    87 	  (0.9)	  (0.9)	  0.9 	  0.9  	

	 Financial Liabilities						    
	 WATC loans	  38,381 	  383.8 	  383.8 	  (383.8)	  (383.8)	

	 Total Increase (Decrease)		    (212.2)	  (212.2)	  212.2 	  212.2 

	 Fair Values
	� All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable 

approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

36	Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers		  2009 	                            2008  
			   $000	 $000
	 Remuneration of Members of the accountable authority
	� The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation,  

non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:
		  2009	 2008		
	 $	 No.	 No.		
	          0 - 10,000	 7 	         8 		
	 10,001 - 20,000	  4 	         4 		
	 20,001 - 30,000	   - 	          1 		
	 30,001 - 40,000	   1	         - 		
	 260,001 - 270,000	   1 	         1 				  
	 The total remuneration of members of the accountable authority is:		    378	                            385

	� The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of members 
of the Accountable Authority. No members of the accountable authority are members of the Pension Scheme.

	 Remuneration of Senior Officers
	� The number of senior officers, other than senior officers reported as members of the accountable authority, 

whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall 
within the following bands are:

		  2009	 2008		
	 $	 No.	 No.
	 20,000 - 30,000	   - 	         1 
	 30,001 - 40,000	   1 	          1 
	 40,001 - 50,000	   1 	          - 
	 50,001 - 60,000	     3 	         1 
	 60,001 - 70,000	   - 	         1 
	   90,001 - 100,000	    1 	         2 
	 100,001 - 110,000	   - 	         1 
	 110,001 - 120,000	      - 	         1 
	 120,001 - 130,000	  - 	         1 
	 130,001 - 140,000	     3 	         5 
	 140,001 - 150,000	     3 	         - 
	 150,001 - 160,000	    1 	          1 
	 160,001 - 170,000	   1 	          - 
	 170,001 - 180,000	          1 	         - 
	 210,001 - 220,000	       1 	          1 
	 The total remuneration of senior officers is:		          1,890 	                        1,736

	� The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of senior  
officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority. No senior officers are  
members of the Pension Scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

				    2009	 2008
				    $000	 $000

37	Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the financial year is as follows:

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators		   112 	                      105

The expense is included at note 11 ‘Other expenses’.					   

38	Related bodies	
	 The Authority has no related bodies at balance sheet date.		

39	Affiliated bodies
The following are classified as non-government affiliated bodies and receive indirect and/or direct 
financial assistance.
Direct financial assistance is given in the form of a grant.  Indirect financial assistance is also given 
in the form of administrative support including the use of a motor vehicle and running costs, office 
accommodation and minor administrative support.

Association of Volunteer Bush Fire Brigades WA Inc		    25 	                      25 
Emergency Services Volunteer Association Inc		  - 	  10	
State Emergency Services Volunteers Association of Western Australia Inc		   26 	  48  
Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc		   559 	  540  
Volunteer Marine Rescue Western Australia Inc		     65 	  126  
Western Australian Volunteer Fire Brigades Association Inc		   289 	  250 	

			    964 	  999 	

40	Supplementary financial information
	 Losses through theft, defaults and other causes				  
	 Losses of public moneys and, public and other property through theft or default		    412 	                      413 
	 Amounts recovered		    (324)	  (288)
			    88 	  125 

41	Indian Ocean Territories
The funds provided by the Department of Transport and Regional Services have been spent on the 
provision of services to the Indian Ocean Territories as specified in the Service Delivery Arrangements 
entered into between the state and Commonwealth.

Opening Balance		  165	 152
Total Receipts		  425	 661
Total Expenditure		  (480)	 (648)

Closing Balance		  110	 165
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2009

42	Schedule of income and expenses by service
		  	As at 30 June 2009 			  As at 30 June 2008	

		  Prevention 	 Emergency 		  Prevention 	 Emergency		
		  Services	 Services	 Total	 Services	 Services	 Total
		  $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	
	 COST OF SERVICES							     
	 Expenses							     
	 Employee benefits expense	    14,901 	  104,809 	  119,710 	  13,040 	  93,618 	 106,658	
	 Supplies and services	   5,999 	  49,550 	  55,549	  5,185 	  45,350 	 50,535	
	 Depreciation and amortisation expense 	  995 	  7,828 	  8,823 	  1,074 	  8,454 	 9,528	
	 Finance costs	   336 	  2,644 	  2,980 	  255 	  2,007 	 2,262	
	 Accommodation expense	  565 	  5,419 	  5,984 	  590 	  5,554 	 6,144	
	 Grants and subsidies	  1,209 	  27,342 	  28,551 	  1,129 	  40,122 	 41,251	
 	 Loss on disposal of non-current assets	   4 	  32 	  36 	  - 	  1 	  1 	
	 Other expense	  440 	  2,332 	  2,772 	  244 	  1,752 	 1,996

	 Total cost of services	    24,449 	  199,956 	  224,405 	  21,517 	  196,858 	 218,375

	 Income							     
 	 User charges and fees	  19,299 	  153,318 	  172,617 	  16,491 	  148,774 	 165,265	
	 Commonwealth grants & contributions	     582 	  4,625 	  5,207 	  593 	  5,357 	 5,950	
 	 Interest revenue	  509 	  4,047 	  4,556 	  446 	  4,023 	 4,469	
	 Gain on disposal of non-current assets	  18 	  144 	  162 	  11 	  102 	 113	
	 Other revenue	   524 	  4,165 	  4,689 	  825 	  7,441 	 8,266

	 Total Income other than income from State Government	   524 	  4,165 	  4,689 	  825 	  7,441 	 8,266

	 NET COST OF SERVICES	  3,517 	  33,657 	  37,174 	  3,151 	  31,161 	 34,312

	 INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT							     
	 Service appropriation and contributions	    4,913 	  39,029 	  43,942 	  4,653 	  41,978 	 46,631 	
	 Resources received free of charge	  63 	  504 	  567 	  159 	  1,438 	 1,597

	 Total Income from State Government	   4,976 	  39,533 	  44,509 	  4,812 	  43,416 	 48,228

	 Surplus for the year	    1,459 	  5,876 	  7,335 	  1,661 	  12,255 	 13,916

	
	 The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.				  
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Certification of Key Performance Indicators

We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to 
assess the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia’s performance, and fairly represent the performance of the 
Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia for the financial year ended 30 June 2009.

A Skinner		  J Harrison-Ward

Chairman of Accountable Authority 		  Member of Accountable Authority

24 August 2009		  24 August 2009

Key Performance Indicators
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Detail on Key 
Performance Indicators

Link to Government Goals

FESA’s core business is to support 
Government Goal 3 – Outcomes 
Based Service Delivery: Greater 
focus on achieving results in key 
service delivery areas for the benefit 
of all Western Australians.

Our community engagement approach 
also supports the achievements of 
other Government goals including:

A stronger focus on the regions 
– our services are delivered 
through a network of regionally-
based employees and volunteers. 
Through the management of the 
Emergency Services Levy and our 
volunteer programs we support local 
governments in maintaining volunteer 
services appropriate to the level of risk 
in their community.

Social and environmental 
responsibility – we support the 
achievement of this goal through our 
commitment to developing sustainable 
emergency management strategies 
and programs that are targeted to 
meet the needs of local communities.

In line with our core responsibilities we 
have adopted one outcome:

•	 The impact of human and natural 
hazards on the community of 
Western Australia is minimised.

We achieve this outcome by providing 
two services:

Service 1: Prevention Services

Prevention Services support the 
achievement of our outcome by raising 
community awareness of the hazards 
people face within their communities 
and by encouraging safer behaviour 
through prevention and mitigation of 
risk. Increased awareness will support 
improved safety through fewer 
preventable emergencies and greater 
preparedness for natural emergencies 
when they occur.

Our community awareness and 
education programs support 
community stakeholders in reducing 
preventable emergencies, for example 
accidental fire, and in mitigating the 
risks of natural hazards specific to their 
location.

We take a targeted approach to the 
delivery of these programs to improve 
the effectiveness and efficiency of 
our prevention services, and some 
campaigns are seasonally focused, 
such as:

•	Storm Safe campaign.

•	Wet season 2008-13 (cyclone, flood).

•	WinterSafe.

•	Smoke Alarm campaign.

•	Bush Fire Program 2008-13.

•	�Dry season (Pilbara and Kimberley 
regions) 2009-14.

Other programs and campaigns, 
such as Juvenile and Family Fire 
Awareness (JAFFA) and our schools 
education program, Fire Inside Out, 
run throughout the year.

The majority of our programs are 
delivered with the support of locally 
based operational staff and volunteers. 
Specialist advice and training includes 
support for local government in 
emergency management and risk 
planning through the All Western 
Australians Reducing Emergencies 
(AWARE) program as well as courses in 
evacuation planning and the safe use 
of fire extinguishers which are delivered 
through our Commercial Training Unit.

Service 2: Emergency Services

The focus of our Emergency Services is 
to minimise the impact of emergencies 
through the delivery of appropriate 
emergency response. To achieve 
this outcome, we ensure that our 
operational personnel, including 
volunteers, are appropriately trained, 
resourced and prepared to deliver an 
efficient, effective and appropriate 
response to emergency incidents. 

By delivering emergency services 
across Western Australia, we support 
the community to minimise the 
economic, environmental and social 
impact of emergencies.

Changes to Outcome 
Based Management 
STRUCTURE for 2009-10

A comprehensive review of our 
Outcome Based Management 
Structure was completed in 2008-09. 
The review had two objectives:

1.	To improve the relevance of 
performance data collected to 
assist in decision making and 
resource allocation. 

2.	To improve the clarity of published 
information to assist stakeholders in 
understanding FESA core services, 
outcomes and performance.

The review recommended revision of 
our outcome statement: “The impact 
of human and natural hazards on 
the community of Western Australia 
is minimised”. We now have two 
outcome statements which more clearly 
indicate the link to our two services and 
the overarching government goal:

1.	Western Australian communities 
able to prevent, prepare for and 
recover from emergencies (Service 
1: Prevention and Mitigation 
Services).

2.	The impact of emergencies is 
minimised through delivery of 
appropriate emergency response 
(Service 2: Emergency Services).

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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The title of our prevention services 
was amended to reflect the significant 
work we undertake in assisting the 
community to mitigate the impact of 
natural emergencies that can never be 
prevented.

Underpinning our new outcome 
statements are a number of 
amendments to our Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs). Two effectiveness 
KPIs have been retained and five new 
effectiveness KPIs have been included 
to measure our performance in 
meeting these outcomes:

•	 Number of accidental residential 
fires per 100,000 households 
(previous KPI retained – Prevention 
and Mitigation Services).

•	 Proportion of structural fires 
confined to the object or room 
of origin (previous KPI retained – 
Prevention and Mitigation Services).

•	 Prevention and mitigation of 
hazardous materials emergencies – 
through the monitoring of special 
risk plans for hazardous materials 
sites (Prevention and Mitigation 
Services).

•	 Percentage of volunteer Fire and 
Rescue Services turnouts within 
target timeframes – to monitor 
capacity to respond in regional 
areas (Emergency Services).

•	 Percentage of 000 calls answered 
within target timeframe (Emergency 
Services) – to support timely 

response to the community and 
to assist in monitoring demand for 
emergency responses.

•	 Percentage of metropolitan 
responses by career Fire and 
Rescue Services within target 
timeframes (established KPI but not 
reported previously in the budget – 
Emergency Services).

•	 Percentage of required personnel 
trained to manage more 
significant incidents – to monitor 
our preparedness to cope with 
potentially increased operational 
activity and concurrent significant 
incidents across the State 
(Emergency Services).

Our efficiency indicators have also 
been amended and from 2009-
10 will measure the cost of our 
services per capita. This amendment 
recognises the significant growth of 
the Western Australian population 
in recent years and will also allow 
improved comparison against national 
benchmarks published in the Report on 
Government Services.

The Outcome Structure Review Group 
endorsed the revised structure on 7 
April 2009 and the new indicators will 
apply from 1 July 2009.

Results for 2008-09

Data Improvement

Performance results for our 
effectiveness indicators depend on 
the completion of incident reports 
and correct coding to support data 
extraction. Each year, the past years’ 
data is adjusted to reflect retrospective 
data entry.

Significant work was undertaken in 
2008-09 to improve data completeness 
and quality. Additional resourcing 
was allocated to data auditing and 
to deliver training in the use of 
operational data systems for career 
and volunteer Fire and Rescue Service 
personnel, and other key users. This 
training has resulted in a reduction in 
the proportion of incomplete incident 
reports and improved coding of 
incidents.

Enabling volunteers to enter data 
electronically via our Volunteer Extranet 
is resulting in significant improvement 
in the completion of their incident 
reporting, with some volunteers having 
completed 100 per cent of their reports 
for the first time. For brigades that still 
do not have access to enter data  
online, resources were allocated to 
clear the backlog of volunteer paper 
reports.

Our performance results have been 
impacted in some instances as a 
consequence of this effort to improve 
data completeness and quality.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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Effectiveness Indicators

During 2008-09, we used three effectiveness indicators to measure our performance 
in minimising the impact of human and natural hazards on the community of Western 
Australia:

•	 The number of accidental residential fires per 100,000 households.

•	 The proportion of structure fires contained to the room or object of origin.

•	 Career Fire and Rescue Service response times (Metropolitan Region).

Number of Accidental Residential Fires per 100,000 
Households

Structure fires1, especially accidental residential fires, can have a devastating effect 
on the community. During 2008-09, we recorded five fatalities and property damage 
estimated at more than $22 million resulting from accidental residential fires.  

This KPI aims to measure the effectiveness of FESA community awareness programs, 
specifically in relation to home fire safety. Programs that impact on our results for this KPI 
include the WinterSafe program, Juvenile and Family Fire Awareness (JAFFA) and the 
Smoke Alarm program. Our partnerships with industry bodies also assist in identifying 
and alerting people to unsafe products which have the potential to cause fire.

The number of households in Western Australia has increased by almost 8.5 per cent 
since 2004-05. During the same period, the number of structure fires has increased by 
just over 7.7 per cent, which indicates that our prevention and mitigation programs are 
having some effect in changing community behaviours.

Annual results are impacted by a number of factors outside our control. For example, 
unsafe behaviour tends to increase during severe winters as there is a greater need 
for heating and the tendency for people to spend longer periods indoors. It is 
therefore appropriate to consider long term trends for this indicator rather than taking 
the results of any particular year as an indication of the effectiveness of community 
awareness programs.

Our target for this KPI is a maximum of 70 fires per 100,000 households. The result 
for 2008-09 was 74.75 fires per 100,000 households (Figure 1.1). The three-year rolling 
average of 74.03 fires per 100,000 households was trending downwards, but slightly 
increased last year.

The results for this indicator depend on data completion and correct coding. The 
number of structure fires where the cause is ‘undetermined’ has reduced from 9.3 per 
cent in 2006-07 to 6.7 per cent in 2008-09. Data for previous years has been adjusted 
to reflect completed reports as at 30 June 2009.

National Benchmarking

The current national average for this indicator is 106 fires per 100,000 households2, 
although data across jurisdictions are not always comparable. Based on our improved 
data, it now appears that FESA’s 2008-09 target of 70 fires per 100,000 households is 
overly optimistic and will be reviewed.

Figure 1.1 – Number of Accidental Residential Fires per 100,000 Households
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1Structure fires are those fires in housing and other buildings (Source: Report on Government Services, 2009).
2Source: Report on Government Services 2009, Accidental Residential Fires per 100,000 households.
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Proportion of Structure Fires Confined to Room or 
Object of Origin

The confinement of fires within structures to the room or object of origin will minimise 
damage to the rest of the structure and reduce the overall impact of the fire on the 
community.

This indicator measures the effectiveness of our community awareness programs in 
encouraging safer behaviour to reduce accidental fire, and in minimising the impact 
of fire emergencies by improving early detection through the installation of smoke 
alarms and sprinkler systems, and early notification of emergency services. It also 
measures, to a lesser extent, the effectiveness of our Emergency Services in confining 
fire through appropriate fire response strategies.

The ability to confine structure fires is impacted by a number of factors outside of our 
control. Weather conditions, building construction and different types of household 
furnishings can affect the rate at which fire spreads. Additionally, the installation of 
early detection devices, such as smoke alarms or sprinkler systems, will support early 
notification of emergency services and increase the capacity to confine the fire.

Initiatives that support improved community safety and the results of this KPI include 
our WinterSafe and Smoke Alarm programs, raising awareness of the emergency 
assistance number 000, fire investigation and analysis to inform the development of 
more effective education and awareness campaigns, and building legislation and 
product standards.

Our 2008-09 target for this indicator was 68 per cent of structure fires confined to the 
room or object of origin, with a higher percentage indicating better performance. 
Data for this indicator depends on completion of incident reporting and also correct 
containment coding.

In 2008-09, we confined 70.10 per cent of all structure fires – an improvement on last 
year’s result. The data includes all types of ignition, both accidental and deliberate. 
Confinement results for accidental fires tend to be higher than for deliberate or 
suspicious fires (79.35 per cent compared to 56.42 per cent) as earlier notification 
allows for a more timely response by emergency services and appropriate action by 
occupants can reduce the spread of the fire.

Retrospective data entry will affect the results for this indicator at any given time. 
Confinement data for past years has been updated to reflect completed reports as 
at 30 June 2009. Improved data quality has only slightly impacted the results for this 
indicator with a 1 per cent improvement in confinement coding since 2007-08.

National Benchmarking

Although results for this indicator are also published in the Report on Government 
Services, data is not directly comparable nationally. The national average for 
confinement of structure fires in 2007-08 was 69.6 per cent for all ignition types.

Figure 2.1 – Structure Fires Confined to Room or Object of Origin
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Response Times – Career Fire and Rescue Services, Perth 
Metropolitan Region

Career firefighters in the metropolitan area currently respond to 61.88 per cent of total 
emergencies within Western Australia and their timely response is critical in minimising 
the impact of fire emergencies on the community. Rapid response, combined with 
appropriate combat strategies, will deliver improved outcomes such as reduced loss 
of life and damage to property and other community assets.

Response time results are provided for five major classes of emergencies: rescue , 
structure fires , hazardous materials incidents (HAZMAT) , other property fires  and 
vegetation fires .

Total response times are measured from the time the request for attendance 
is received to the time that the first emergency crew arrives at the scene of the 
incident. Where there is high potential for threat to life (structure fires and rescues), 
first response crews aim to be on the scene within eight minutes or less 50 per cent 
of the time (50th percentile target) and within 12 minutes 90 per cent of the time 
(90th percentile target). These target timeframes are also used as a benchmark for 
responses to other types of incidents.

Data provided is based only on incidents where reporting has been completed. 
Retrospective data entry will affect the results at any given time and response time 
data for past years has been updated to reflect completed reports as at 30 June 2009.

The results for 2008-09 (Figures 3.1a and 3.1b) show that our response times were 
better than target for rescue and structure fire incidents – the two most life-critical 
emergencies. While response times are higher than the benchmark times for 
the remaining categories, there is a clear improvement in the results for 2008-09 
compared to the previous financial year. Response times for all types of incidents have 
improved compared to last year, with 90th percentile results for HAZMAT being the 
only category where performance was not equal to or improved compared to 2007-08.

With our focus on improving operational data quality during 2008-09, improved coding 
and completion of incident reporting has particularly impacted results for structure, 
rescue and HAZMAT as we have significantly reduced the percentage of incomplete 
incidents from 15.6 per cent in 2007-08 to 6.5 per cent at the end of 2008-09.
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Figure 3.1a – Percentage of Arrivals at Incidents in 8 Minutes or Less

Grass Fires Other 
Property

Hazmat Structure Rescue

n 2004-05 44% 49% 54% 53% 66%

n 2005-06 42% 45% 50% 53% 65%

n 2006-07 42% 45% 50% 53% 65%

n 2007-08 42% 45% 42% 48% 61%

n 2008-09 45% 48% 42% 51% 58%

3 Non-fire rescues including road crash rescue.
4 Structure fires are those fires in housing and other buildings (Source: Report on Government Services, 2009).
5 HAZMAT includes petrol or flammable spills and gas leaks.
6 Other Property refers to fires in special structures including but not limited to piers, bridges, or tunnels, outside storage  
facilities and mobile property, for example buses, aircraft and rail.  
7 Vegetation fires include landscape and grass fires.
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Response times to HAZMAT incidents are traditionally longer than for other incidents 
types as additional time is usually taken at the mobilisation stage to determine what 
materials are involved, the appropriate response strategy and whether specialist 
resources are required to safely deal with the incident. Extra time is often also required 
with grass fires for crews to determine and reach the exact location of the fire, especially 
if they are required to move off-road, and to determine the severity or potential impact 
of the incident, which can delay notification that crews have arrived on scene.

Limitations in the capabilities of our reporting system mean that in some instances 
response times are overstated. Results are currently calculated for brigades designated 
as the ‘primary response’ and do not allow for incidents where support crews are 
the first on-scene. As this impacts the quality of our data and extends our reported 
response times, we are investigating options for addressing this data quality issue.

Figure 3.1b – Percentage of Arrivals at Incidents in 12 Minutes or Less
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Grass Fires Other 
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Hazmat Structure Rescue

n 2004-05 85% 88% 89% 91% 92%

n 2005-06 87% 89% 87% 93% 93%

n 2006-07 86% 88% 87% 90% 92%

n 2007-08 86% 89% 84% 92% 92%

n 2008-09 87% 90% 84% 93% 92%
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Figures 3.2 to 3.6 provide response time information for Rescue Incidents, Structure Fires, 
HAZMAT Incidents, Other Property Fires, and Grass, Scrub Rubbish and Bush Fires.

Rescues are considered to potentially pose a high threat to life and as such are defined 
as ‘life critical’ incidents. Responses to these incidents receive the highest priority. 

The total number of incidents used to calculate rescue response times in 2008-09 (Figure 
2.3) was 1,153. This is an increase of more than three per cent compared to 2007-08. 
The median response time increased by six seconds and the 90th percentile response 
time decreased by 13 seconds. We achieved our target response times for both the 50th 
and 90th percentiles. In 2008-09, 92.28 per cent of rescue incidents received a response 
within 12 minutes, which is consistent with 91.94 percent in 2007-08.

These times 
expressed in this 
table are in minutes 
and percentages of 
minutes

Median 
Response 
Time (50th 
Percentile)

Response 
Time (90th 
Percentile)

Number of 
Incidents 
Above 12 
Minutes

Total 
HAZMAT 
Incidents

Minimum 
Total 

Response 
Times

Maximum 
Total 

Response 
Time

2004-05 7.07 11.29 55 552 0.008 42.8

2005-06 7.09 11.00 47 474 0.00 24.78

2006-07 7.35 11.30 101 1,009 0.00 34.95

2007-08 7.47 11.60 112 1,117 0.00 28.48

2008-09 7.57 11.39 117 1,153 0.00 31.15

5 Year Average 7.31 11.32 86 861

Figure 3.2 – Response Times 50th and 90th Percentile – Rescue Incidents 
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8 Minimum response times of 0.00 minutes occur when fire crews notice and respond to an emergency before it has been 
reported to the Communications Centre by a 000 call.
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Structure fires are categorised as ‘life critical’ incidents and receive the highest priority 
for response.

The total number of incidents used to calculate structure fire response times in 2008-
09 was 1,045, which is consistent with 1,035 recorded in 2007-08. Our median response 
time improved by 13 seconds and our 90th percentile response time improved by one 
second. We met our targets for both the 50th and 90th percentiles. In 2008-09, 92.82 
per cent of structure fire incidents received a response within 12 minutes compared to 
91.59 per cent in 2007-08. Response times for structure fires are also reported through 
the Report on Government Services.  Data in the report includes responses by all 
services, which in Western Australia includes volunteers9, and is not comparable with 
data published here.

These times 
expressed in this 
table are in minutes 
and percentages of 
minutes

Median 
Response 
Time (50th 
Percentile)

Response 
Time (90th 
Percentile)

Number of 
Incidents 
Above 12 
Minutes

Total 
HAZMAT 
Incidents

Minimum 
Total 

Response 
Times

Maximum 
Total 

Response 
Time

2004-05 7.83 11.74 92 922 0.08 32.95

2005-06 7.82 11.25 82 822 0.05 31.67

2006-07 7.88 11.88 98 986 0.45 27.75

2007-08 8.17 11.58 104 1,035 0.00 70.23

2008-09 7.95 11.57 105 1,045 0.00 88.50

5 Year Average 7.93 11.60 96.20 962.00

Figure 3.3 – Response Times 50th and 90th Percentile – Structure Fires
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9 All services data includes responses by career Fire and Rescue Service, volunteer Fire and Rescue Service, Volunteer Fire 
Services, Volunteer Emergency Services and local government Bush Fire Brigades.
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HAZMAT response time data includes petrol or flammable spills and gas leaks. The 
total number of incidents in 2008-09 was 643, which is 12.5 per cent fewer than in 
2007-08. The median response time for HAZMAT incidents in 2008-09 improved by 
13 seconds compared to 2007-08. The 90th percentile response time increased by 
16 seconds. These times remain slightly above target. In 2008-09, 83.83 per cent of 
incidents received a response within 12 minutes compared to 84.35 per cent in 2007-08.

Figure 3.4 – Response Times 50th and 90th Percentile – HAZMAT Incidents
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These times 
expressed in this 
table are in minutes 
and percentages of 
minutes

Median 
Response 
Time (50th 
Percentile)

Response 
Time (90th 
Percentile)

Number of 
Incidents 
Above 12 
Minutes

Total 
HAZMAT 
Incidents

Minimum 
Total 

Response 
Times

Maximum 
Total 

Response 
Time

2004-05 7.78 12.38 82 821 0.00 79.27 

2005-06 8.00 12.87 87 878 0.00 37.72

2006-07 8.38 12.64 56 566 0.05 35.25

2007-08 8.68 13.22 73 735 0.00 27.13

2008-09 8.47 13.49 64 643 0.00 32.83 

5 Year Average 8.26 12.92 72.40 728.60
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Response Times 50th and 90th Percentile – Other Property Fires
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These times 
expressed in this 
table are in minutes 
and percentages of 
minutes

Median 
Response 
Time (50th 
Percentile)

Response 
Time (90th 
Percentile)

Number of 
Incidents 
Above 12 
Minutes

Total 
HAZMAT 
Incidents

Minimum 
Total 

Response 
Times

Maximum 
Total 

Response 
Time

2004-05 8.04 12.65 106 1,058 0.00 35.38

2005-06 8.28 12.18 104 1,045 0.00 79.40 

2006-07 8.37 12.35 129 1,285 0.07 54.37

2007-08 8.23 12.18 134 1,331 0.00 27.75 

2008-09 8.13 11.98  130 1,298 0.05 63.35  

5 Year Average 8.21 12.27 121 1,203

The total number of incidents used to calculate other property response times in 
2008-09 was 1,298, a decrease of 2.5 per cent compared to 2007-08. The median 
response time for this incident category has improved by six seconds. The 90th 
percentile time improved by 12 seconds, bringing this indicator slightly under the 
target of 12 minutes. In 2008-09, 90.22 per cent of other property incidents received a 
response within 12 minutes compared to 89.41 per cent in 2007-08.
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Figure 3.6 – Response Times 50th and 90th Percentile 
– Grass, Scrub, Rubbish and Bush Fires
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These times 
expressed in this 
table are in minutes 
and percentages of 
minutes

Median 
Response 
Time (50th 
Percentile)

Response 
Time (90th 
Percentile)

Number of 
Incidents 
Above 12 
Minutes

Total 
HAZMAT 
Incidents

Minimum 
Total 

Response 
Times

Maximum 
Total 

Response 
Time

2004-05 8.48 13.13 468 4,661 0.00 166.72

2005-06 8.53 12.58  454 4,513 0.00 94.33

2006-07 8.50  12.75 514 5,132 0.00 37.33

2007-08 5.57  12.94 502 5,027 0.00 58.68 

2008-09 8.37 12.88   484 4,788 0.00 123.83  

5 Year Average 7.89 12.86 484 4,824 

The total number of incidents used to calculate response times for this category in 
2008-09 was 4,788, a decrease of 4.8 per cent compared to 2007-08. Response times 
for both the median and 90th percentile have improved, yet remain slightly above 
target. In 2008-09, 86.75 per cent of incidents in this category received a response 
within 12 minutes compared to 85.96 per cent in 2007-08.
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Efficiency Indicator Prevention Services – Average 
Cost per Prevention Service

Our efficiency in delivering our Prevention Services is measured by the average cost 
of community awareness and education programs. The average cost per prevention 
service in 2008-09 was $1,286,789.

During 2008-09, we aimed to deliver 18 services and delivered 19. 

Prevention Service costs this year were impacted by delays in completing 
redevelopment of our Fire Education and Heritage Centre and additional community 
awareness and preparedness activities undertaken as a result of the Victorian bush 
fires.

Community reaction to the Victorian incidents included increased demand for 
information and a need for extra reassurance and guidance in preparing for bush 
fire. In response, we allocated personnel to provide 24 hour coverage of community 
information lines and delivered seven community awareness sessions in high-risk bush 
fire areas in the metropolitan, South West and Great Southern regions. In addition, 
operational staff undertook extensive door knocking during bush fire incidents to 
reassure residents and advise them on appropriate action.

Expense related to these activities was a key contributing factor in the increase of 19.6 
per cent in average expenditure compared to 2007-08 and had a major impact on 
our efficiency result for 2008-09. In addition, a rise in general costs and a continued 
commitment to community engagement and building resilience at the local level also 
impacted our results.

The method used to calculate this efficiency indicator does not consider the 
complexities of some of our programs. For example, activities undertaken in response 
to the Victorian bush fires were conducted as part of the Bush Fire Program, which is 
counted as one Prevention Service regardless of activity level. Similarly, environmental 
management programs, tsunami mitigation planning and Indigenous program 
development are highly complex programs which absorb a disproportionate share of 
the budget compared to some of our other prevention programs.

For this reason, we have amended our efficiency indicator for Prevention and 
Mitigation Services, which will be based on expenditure per head of population from 
2009-10.

Figure 4.1 ‐ Number of Prevention Services and Average Cost for the Past 5 Years
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Efficiency Indicator Emergency Services – Average 
Cost per Operational Personnel Ready to Respond to 
an Emergency

Our efficiency in delivering our Emergency Services is measured by the average cost 
of operational personnel ready to respond to an emergency.  

Total cost of Emergency Services includes all fixed and variable expenditure involved 
in maintaining Emergency Services. Total costs are also impacted by unbudgeted 
expenditure incurred in the delivery of services to manage significant emergencies 
caused by natural hazard risks. Supplementary funding to cover this expenditure 
is reimbursed annually through the Western Australian Natural Disaster Relief and 
Recovery Arrangements (WANDRRA) and $15.9 million was received in 2008-09.

For the purposes of calculating the results for this indicator, costs of the RAC 
Emergency Rescue Helicopter Service are excluded as the service is managed on our 
behalf by St John Ambulance Australia.

Results for 2008-09 indicate that the total number of operational personnel has 
decreased by 2.2 per cent – from 31,511 in 2007-08 to 30,946 at 30 June 2009. The 
largest reduction of 385 was in State Emergency Service volunteer numbers.

Data quality auditing, including the removal of duplicate personnel records may have 
affected our volunteer numbers this year. Volunteer levels will always be dynamic, 
however, continuous improvement to personnel records systems and the ongoing 
review of volunteer sustainability will be a focus for 2008-09.

The average cost per operational personnel has increased slightly in 2008-09 
compared to 2007-08. This is due to lower numbers of operational personnel and 
increased total costs of Emergency Services.

Figure 5.1 ‐ Average Cost per Operational Personnel Ready to Respond to an 
Emergency 
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Note: Emergency Rescue Helicopter Service costs are excluded from the calculation for average cost of operational personnel 
ready to respond to an emergency.
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To the Parliament of Western Australia  

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 
I have audited the accounts, financial statements, controls and key performance indicators of the Fire and Emergency Services  
Authority of Western Australia.  

The financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2009, and the Income Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity  
and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Notes.  

The key performance indicators consist of key indicators of effectiveness and efficiency. 

Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators 
The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the 
Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and the key performance indicators. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and key performance indicators that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies; making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances; and complying with the Financial Management Act 2006 and other relevant written law.  

Summary of my Role 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements, controls and key performance indicators based on my audit. This was done by 
testing selected samples of the audit evidence. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. Further information on my audit 
approach is provided in my audit practice statement. Refer www.audit.wa.gov.au/pubs/AuditPracStatement_Feb09.pdf.  

An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the financial statements and key performance indicators is error free. The term “reasonable assurance” recognises that an audit 
does not examine all evidence and every transaction. However, my audit procedures should identify errors or omissions significant enough to adversely affect the decisions of users of the financial 
statements and key performance indicators. 

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators for the year ended 30 June 2009  
Audit Opinion 
In my opinion, 
	� (i) the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly the financial position of the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia at  30 June 2009 and its 

financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date. They are in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and 
the Treasurer’s Instructions; 

	� (ii) the controls exercised by the Authority provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of 
liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions; and 

	� (iii) the key performance indicators of the Authority are relevant and appropriate to help users assess the Authority’s performance and fairly represent the indicated performance for the year 
ended 30 June 2009. 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION

COLIN MURPHY 
AUDITOR GENERAL 

1 September 2009

Auditor General
4th Floor Dumas House  2 Havelock Street  West Perth 6005   

Western Australia  Tel: 08 9222 7500  Fax: 08 9322 5664
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4th Floor Dumas House  2 Havelock Street  West Perth 6005   

Western Australia  Tel: 08 9222 7500  Fax: 08 9322 5664

Ministerial Directives and Communication

Ministerial Directives [TI 903(12)]

Treasurer’s Instruction 903(12) requires disclosure of any Ministerial directives relevant 
to the setting of desired outcomes or operational objectives, the achievement of 
desired outcomes or operational objectives, investment activities, and financing 
activities. No such directives were issued to FESA by the Minister for Police; 
Emergency Services; Road Safety during 2008-09. 

Ministerial Communication

In accordance with Section 74 of the Public Sector Management Act 1994, we have a 
communications agreement with the Minister for Police; Emergency Services; Road 
Safety that outlines communication procedures between the Minister’s office and our 
employees. This agreement ensures that the Minister receives accurate and timely 
information and advice. In 2008-09, 90 per cent of correspondence was attended to 
within specified timeframes.

Other Financial Disclosures

Pricing Policies of Services Provided

User charges and fees are reviewed annually. Increases in user charges and fees 
are generally limited to increases in the consumer price index as advised by the 
Department of Treasury and Finance.

The Emergency Services Levy (ESL) was introduced in 2003-04 and provides the 
majority of our funding to enable effective service delivery for bush and structure fires, 
cyclones, earthquakes, floods, incidents involving hazardous materials, severe storms, 
tsunamis, road crash rescues and a range of search and rescue call-outs.

The ESL is a Western Australian Government charge which is invoiced and collected 
by local government with funds remitted directly to FESA. ESL rates and charging 
parameters are determined annually by the Minister for Police; Emergency Services; 
Road Safety to raise an approved amount of ESL each year. The 2008-09 ESL budget, 
rates and charging parameters were published in the Government Gazette on 30 May 
2008.2008-09 2007-08

Ministerial items 722 674

Parliamentary Questions 37 34

Functions attended by the Minister 34 42

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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Capital Works

The 2008-09 Capital Works Program of $38.9 million comprised new works of $2.3 
million and works in progress of $36.6 million. After adjusting for approved carry overs 
from 2007-08 and revisions agreed with the Department of Treasury and Finance, 
the revised program for 2008-09 amounted to $35.1 million. Actual expenditure on 
the revised program amounted to $20.8 million, with approval from the Economic 
and Expenditure Reform Committee being sought to carry over the balance of $14.3 
million.

The Capital Works Investment Plan is established in conjunction with the application 
of a resource-to-risk assessment to determine the emergency service infrastructure 
needs of communities and operational personnel throughout the State. This process 
recognises demographic changes and changing community safety issues.

Progress has continued on the construction of a purpose-built emergency service 
headquarters in Cockburn. This commenced in 2007-08, but was delayed by the 
change of Government and subsequent review of the state’s Capital Works Program. 
The new facility will incorporate Western Australia’s emergency communication and 
coordination centre and also accommodate administrative and emergency support 
staff from existing facilities in Hay Street, Perth and Belmont.

Other major land and building capital works allocations in 2008-09 included new 
buildings and upgrades to existing facilities. Regional projects included major works in 
Kununurra and Derby.

Major building projects still outstanding are:

Capital Project				    Estimated for Completion

Albany VFRS				    2009-10

Derby Volunteer Collocation		  2009-10

Emergency Services Centre Kununurra	 2009-10

Esperance Volunteer Collocation		  2009-10

FESA Headquarters Relocation		  2010-11

WA Emergency Radio Network		  2010-11

Appliance Replacement Program		  Various dates

Western Australian Natural Disaster Relief and 
Recovery Arrangements (WANDRRA)

We manage the Western Australian Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery 
Arrangements (WANDRRA) which provide financial assistance to communities whose 
social, financial and economic well-being has been significantly affected by a natural 
disaster. WANDRRA payments can extend over several financial years.

During 2008-09, six events were proclaimed eligible natural disasters under the 
WANDRRA provisions:

	 • Tropical Cyclone Pancho and associated flooding (March-April 2008).

	 • �Storms in the Great Southern and South East and associated flooding (November 
2008).

	 • Storms in the eastern Great Southern and associated flooding (December 2008).

	 • Monsoon trough and associated flooding (January 2009).

	 • Tropical Cyclone Dominic and associated flooding (January 2009).

• Tropical lows and associated flooding (February 2009).

Details of the above declarations, and of the WANDRRA, are available on the FESA 
website.

WANDRRA expenditure during 2008-09 by hazard category was as follows:

$4,598,777 of the above amount was expended on the repair and restoration of road 
infrastructure.

Hazard Total

Cyclone (including associated flooding) $4,392,626

Bush fire $695,006

Floods $581,347

Storms $100,408

Total $5,769,387

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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National Emergency Volunteer Support Fund

The National Emergency Volunteer Support Fund (NEVSF) is funded by the Australian 
Government and managed by Emergency Management Australia (EMA) directly with 
successful applicants. FESA assists with the initial processing of applications and with 
the preparation of recommendations to the Australian Government Minister regarding 
NEVSF allocations.

The 2008-09 NEVSF funding round provided $394,790 for 31 Western Australian 
projects.

Applications for the 2009-10 NEVSF funding round closed on 31 March 2009, and 
successful applications are expected to be announced early in 2009-10.

Natural Disaster Mitigation

The Natural Disaster Mitigation Program (NDMP) is a national program to identify, 
assess and provide prioritised funding for natural emergency mitigation initiatives 
to help communities withstand the effects of natural disasters. We administer the 
program within Western Australia.

The 2008-09 NDMP funding round provided $2,226,866 for 22 Western Australian 
projects. Allocations included:

•	 $550,000 to assist with the Onslow evacuation centre and multi purpose complex.

•	 $479,315 towards Carnarvon flood mitigation works.

Disaster Resilience Australia Package

A National Partnership on Disaster Resilience Australia was announced in the 
Australian Government Budget 2009-10 on 12 May. This will provide funding to states 
and territories over the next four years as part of an ongoing program to strengthen 
efforts to combat man-made and natural threats and disasters across Australia.

The focus will be on building community resilience, with the Disaster Resilience 
Australia Package replacing a number of existing disaster mitigation programs, 
including the NDMP, the Bushfire Mitigation Program and the National Emergency 
Volunteer Support Fund.

Employment and Industrial Relations

Staff Profile

Workplace Management

FESA employees are covered by a number of awards and agreements providing 
terms and conditions of employment. The Western Australian Fire Service Enterprise 
Bargaining Agreement 2008 was successfully registered in March 2009. This 
agreement covers Firefighters, Communications Systems Officers, Fire Safety Officers 
and Advisors, and Applied Training Assistants and provides enhanced wages and 
conditions for both employees and FESA.

In July 2009, we will formally commence negotiations for a replacement Agency 
Specific Agreement, covering government officers, and a replacement Fleet and 
Equipment Services agreement which will cover Technicians at the O’Connor 
workshops.

There was no industrial action in 2008-09 resulting in time lost due to absences. We 
are continuing to review, update and create new policies to ensure adherence to 
compliance requirements and reflect best practice in people management.

2008-09  
As at 30 

June 2009

2007-08 
As at 30  

June 2008

Full-time permanent 1,260 1,198

Full-time contract 33 32

Full-time trainees 2 1

Part-time permanent 30 29

Part-time contract 11 7

On secondment (at FESA)   81 6

On secondment (to other agencies) 3 4

Casuals 2 2

Total (headcount) 1,341 1,282

1 On secondment (at FESA) employees have been excluded from total headcount
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Equity and Diversity

We have progressed a number of Equity and Diversity Plan initiatives during 2008-09. 
These include:

•	 The establishment of a permanent Recruitment Coordinator, whose key 
responsibilities include actively targeting and developing beneficial relationships 
with diverse community groups to promote diversity within FESA.

•	 The identification of equal opportunity, harassment and bullying training needs, 
and the development of an organisation wide training program to address these 
needs.

•	 The development of parameters for the Equity and Diversity Group.

•	 Collection of data through a Diversity Survey to record and assess diversity 
outcomes across FESA.

•	 The ongoing development of a mentoring system.

•	 Various policies, including the Grievance and Equal Opportunity Policies, are 
being reviewed, as is our Disability, Access and Inclusion Plan.

Recruitment

We aim to achieve continual improvement in all recruitment processes. By evaluating 
past and present recruitment processes, monitoring current trends and adapting our 
processes, we are able to attract quality applicants. In 2008-09, we received 1,364 
applications for 146 advertised vacancies.

No general firefighter recruitment was conducted in 2008, as a comprehensive review 
of the firefighter recruitment process was undertaken. The recommendations from this 
review are currently being considered.

Two targeted firefighter recruitment campaigns with the active involvement of local 
fire stations were conducted in Kalgoorlie-Boulder and Geraldton. The campaigns 
included local newspaper and radio advertising, information session and open days.

Occupational Safety and Health

Mechanism for Consultation with Employees on Occupational Safety and Health

During the past 12 months significant progress has been made towards re-
establishing robust occupational safety and health consultative processes. The 
Manager Safety, Health and Welfare presented at the United Firefighters Union (UFU) 
conference in late 2008 and this was followed by formal elections for Safety and 
Health Representatives from the Fire and Rescue Service and agreement regarding 
consultative processes for moving forward.

We have commenced an external audit of the Safety, Health and Welfare 
Management System, which includes formal interviews with the UFU safety 
representative, elected Safety and Health Representatives and employees.

During 2008-09, we also called for employee representatives from non-uniformed 
areas of FESA and are reviewing the results of this process.

Consultation with our Volunteer Fire and Rescue Services in relation to competitions 
was conducted and significant competition safety improvements have been achieved 
through the attendance of the Manager Safety Health and Welfare at competition 
rules meetings during 2009 and at the State and Easter Championships.

Injury Management

The FESA Injury Prevention and Management Program primarily focused on the Fire 
and Rescue Service, aiming to keep firefighters physically capable of the arduous tasks 
they are called upon to perform. In line with this objective, the first year of a three-
year program to upgrade station based gyms was completed, with seven fire stations 
updated. Health and fitness checks are conducted on a voluntary basis and visits were 
made to Bunbury and Albany during the past year.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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Workers Compensation and Injury Claims and Rehabilitation

Indicator Target 2008-09
Achieved

2008-09 2007-08

Number of fatalities Zero (0) Zero (0) Zero (0)

Lost time injury/diseases 
(LTI/D) incidence rate

Zero (0) or 10% 
reduction on previ-

ous year

7.52 8.35

10% reduction

Lost time injury severity rate
Zero (0) or 10% 

improvement on 
previous year

6.6667 8.2645

19% reduction

Proportion of injured workers 
returned to work within 28 
weeks

Actual percent-
age result to be 

reported
98.96%

Not  
reported 

in 2007-08

Proportion of managers 
trained in occupational 
safety, health and injury  
management responsibilities

Greater than or 
equal to 50%

30%
Not  

reported 
in 2007-08

Number of Severe Claims
Using RiskCover 

definitions

8 10

20% reduction

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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FESA Board Members as 
at 30 June 2009 

During 2008-09, the focus of our 
occupational safety and health 
strategies has been to reduce lost 
time injuries and severity rates. We 
have achieved more than the targeted 
reductions in these areas through a 
review of processes and systems, and 
raising awareness of occupational 
safety and health issues among career 
and volunteer operational personnel. 
We also presented injury management 
and occupational, safety and health 
information to all managers as part of 
the Senior Managers Forum.

Chairman

Mr Allan Skinner PSM 

A retired career state public servant, 
Mr Skinner was a former Chief 
Executive Officer of the Department 
of Land Administration and Chair 
of the Bush Fires Board. Since his 
retirement in 2001, he has undertaken 
several consulting assignments for 
government. He is a National Fellow of 
the Institute of Public Administration 
Australia (FIPAA) and a Fellow of the 
Australian Institute of Management 
(FAIM). Mr Skinner was awarded the 
Public Service Medal in 2001 and the 
Centenary Medal in 2003. 

First appointed: 31 December 2002

Appointed as Chairman: 28 April 2008

Term expires: 27 April 2010

Deputy Chairman – Bush Fire 
Services Consultative Committee 
Chairman

Mr Bruce Brennan APM 

Mr Brennan had a long and 
distinguished career with the Western 
Australia Police, rising to the rank 
of Deputy Commissioner before 
his retirement in 2003. Mr Brennan 
represented the Western Australia 
Police on many committees, including 
the State Emergency Management 
Committee. In 1998, he was awarded 
the Australian Police Medal.

First Appointed: 6 February 2006

Appointed Deputy Chairman: 28 April 2008

Term expires: 27 April 2010

Chief Executive Officer (Ex-Officio 
Member)

Ms Jo Harrison-Ward

Ms Harrison-Ward’s appointment as 
FESA CEO in August 2006 followed 
three senior management positions in 
FESA – Executive Director Emergency 
Management; Manager Policy and 
Strategic Planning; and Manager Media 
and Public Affairs. She has also held the 
positions of Director at the Department 
of Local Government and Regional 
Development (with responsibility 
for Machinery of Government 
Implementation) and Executive Director 
at Western Australia Police. Before 
she joined FESA in 1988, she was a 
senior advisor on emergency services 
to successive Western Australian 
Government Ministers. Her academic 

qualifications include a Graduate 
Certificate in Management and a 
Master in Leadership and Management.

Bush Fire Brigade Volunteer 
Representative

Mr Eddie van Rijnswoud 

Mr van Rijnswoud has 15 years 
experience as a bush fire brigade 
volunteer and was the Secretary of 
the Association of Volunteer Bush 
Fire Brigades Western Australia Inc. 
for six years. For many years Mr van 
Rijnswoud has been involved in other 
voluntary community organisations 
and committees and also has 38 
years experience as a professional 
communications engineer in the public 
sector at federal and State levels.

First appointed: 7 December 2001

Term expired: 31 December 2006 – 
term extended 

FESA Employee Representative

Mr Iain Agnew

Mr Agnew has been an employee 
of FESA since 1979. He is a senior 
firefighter of the Fire and Rescue 
Service and is stationed at Welshpool 
Fire Station. In 2000 he was appointed 
a member of the Fire and Rescue 
Service Consultative Committee and 
has also been a committee member 
of the United Firefighters Union of 
Western Australia since 1998.

First appointed: 17 November 2003 

Term expired: 31 December 2006 – 
term extended 

Fire and Rescue Services 
Consultative Committee Chairwoman

Mrs Penelope Valentine 

Mrs Valentine was a FESA staff member 
for seven years before leaving in 
July 2005 to pursue private business 
interests. Her professional career spans 
more than 40 years, commencing 
in journalism and more recently in 
management positions in media and 
public affairs, strategic planning and 
corporate governance with FESA. She 
currently serves in a voluntary capacity 
on several local government and 
community committees.

First appointed: 6 February 2006 

Term Expires: 27 April 2010

Volunteer Fire and Rescue Services 
Representative

Mr Trevor Jones

Mr Jones has a long association 
with the Volunteer Fire and Rescue 
Service in regional Western Australia. 
He has been a member of the South 
Kalgoorlie brigade since 1977, 
including a five-year term as Captain, 
and the Kalgoorlie VFRS since 2005 
where he holds position of Secretary. 
Mr Jones is currently the Goldfields 
Zone representative for the WA 
Volunteer Fire and Rescue Services 
Association.

First appointed: 6 February 2006 

Term expires: 6 February 2008 – term 
extended

GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES
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Independent Member

Ms Glenda Teede 

Ms Teede has also worked extensively 
with Indigenous communities 
throughout Australia and in particular 
the Kimberley region of Western 
Australia.

After 6 years as Chief Executive 
Officer of the Bidyadanga Aboriginal 
Community La Grange Inc, Ms 
Teede moved to Karratha to take up 
the challenge of becoming District 
Business Manager, West Pilbara for 
Horizon Power. This role includes being 
the On-Scene Commander, responsible 
for taking charge of procedures carried 
out in the event of a cyclone.

First appointed: 6 February 2006 

Term expires: 27 April 2010

State Emergency Service 
Consultative Committee Chairwoman

Ms Sandra Gregorini

Ms Gregorini has been a volunteer 
bush fire brigade member for over 
13 years and has been involved 
in a number of other community 
groups since 1966. She has 32 years 
experience in property development 
and management and is a current 
Councillor for the City of Swan. Sandra 
was Deputy Chair of this committee for 
2007-2008.

First Appointed: 19 March 2002

Term expires: 27 April 2010

State Emergency Service Volunteer 
Representative

Mr John Capes, OAM

Mr Capes has been involved in the 
State Emergency Service Volunteer 
Association in many capacities for 
the past 20 years. After leaving the 
Australian Government, he established 
his own business, Capes Consultancy 
Services, which supplies expertise 
on security and the facilitation of 
emergency management exercises.

First appointed: 2 November 1999 

Term expires: 30 June 2007 – term 
extended 

Volunteer Marine Rescue Services 
Consultative Committee Chairman

Mr Ross Monger

Mr Monger was a public servant 
of 43 years, mostly in state court 
administration. On his retirement in 
2007, he was appointed Director of 
Magistrates Courts Western Australia. 
Mr Monger also spent 10 years with 
WorkCover Western Australia as the 
director responsible for workers’ 
compensation dispute resolution. He is 
currently a Justice of the Peace and a 
lay member of two ethics committees.

First appointed: 28 April 2008

Term expires: 27 April 2010

Volunteer Marine Rescue Services 
Volunteer Representative

Mr Eliot Fisher, ESM

Mr Fisher is currently the Commander 
Bunbury Sea Rescue has had many 
years experience as a volunteer with 
the Bunbury and York State Emergency 
Service, Bunbury Volunteer Marine 
Rescue and the York Bush Fire Brigade. 
He currently serves as the National 
Commander of the Australian Navy 
Cadets. He has also served in the 
Citizen Military Forces and spent 
over 20 years as a leader in the Scout 
Association of Australia. Formerly a 
local government CEO, he retains an 
active interest in rural communities as 
Western Australian Local Government 
Association Zone Executive Officer for 
the South West.

First appointed: 28 April 2003 

Term expires: 6 February 2008 – term 
extended

Western Australian Local 
Government Association 
Representative

Councillor Christine Thompson

Cr Thompson is the Deputy President 
of the Shire of Murray and the Chair of 
the Shire of Murray Local Emergency 
Management Committee. She also 
represents local government on 
the Peel Region District Emergency 
Management Committee and the 
Recovery Services Committee which 
is a sub-committee of the State 
Emergency Management Committee. 

Cr Thompson has a wealth of 
experience in emergency services, 
is a current volunteer firefighter and 
has served on a number of advisory 
committees and boards.

First appointed: 30 May 2000

Term expires: 15 January 2011

Number of meetings attended  
in 2008-2009

Eleven Board meetings were held 
during the year. 

The record of attendance of members 
is as follows:

Iain Agnew	 10

Bruce Brennan, APM	 11

John Capes, OAM	 10

Eliot Fisher	 9

Sandra Gregorini	 9

Jo Harrison-Ward 3	     11

Trevor Jones	 9

Allan Skinner, PSM	 11

Glenda Teede	 7

Penny Valentine	 9

Eddie Van Rijnswoud	 11

Christine Thompson	 10

Ross Monger	 8

3 Frank Pasquale attended one meeting as acting Chief 
Executive Officer in place of Ms Harrison-Ward

1 Mr Barnett resigned from the FESA Board on  
28 April 2008.
2 Mr C Hynes attended two meetings as acting Chief 
Executive Officer in place of Ms Harrison-Ward.
3 Mr Monger was appointed to the FESA Board on  
28 April 2008.
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During 2008-09, the committee held four meetings. Attendance was as follows:

Glenda Teede – Chair  	 3

John Capes 		  2 

Eliot Fisher 		  4 

Eddie van Rijnswoud 	 4 

Meetings were also attended by: 

•	 Chief Executive Officer.

•	 Executive Director Corporate Services.

•	 Director Business Services (Chief Finance Officer).

•	 Manager Financial Services.

•	 Sutherland Rose (Internal Auditor).

•	 Office of the Auditor General and/or its representative (External Auditor).

FESA’s Internal Audit is conducted by an outsourced provider, Sutherland Rose, in 
accordance with the Financial Management Act (2006) and the Institute of Internal 
Auditors (IIA) International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. 
The Internal Audit presents an independent, objective assurance and consulting 
activity designed to add value and improve our organisation’s operations. 

The following internal audits were conducted in 2008-09:

•	 Financial Audits: Determine whether the following processes are efficient, effective 
and comply with the Financial Management Act (2006) and relevant Treasurer’s 
Instructions:

	 • Accounts Receivable.

	 • Purchasing.

	 • Accounts Payable.

	 • Purchasing Cards.

	 • Fixed Assets.

	 • Payroll and Superannuation including overtime and allowances.

	 • Financial Segregation of Duties.

•	 Emergency Services Levy: Assess the effectiveness and efficiency of controls and 
processes in place to ensure the ESL is calculated and administered in accordance 
with the policy specified by Government and practices comply with FESA policies 
and procedures.

•	 Local government’s acquittal of ESL payments: Ensure local government agencies 
spend the ESL payments in accordance with the funding agreement.

•	 Supplementary Funds Expenditure Audit: Review supplementary funds 
expenditure (OCN, WANDRA and Wildfire) and ensure it is appropriate given the 
nature of the disaster and the funding agreement.

•	 Fleet and Equipment Management: Ensure the management of the fleet and 
equipment is efficient and effective including fleet replacement and maintenance.

•	 Capital Works: Capital works including non-ESL capital is capitalised in accordance 
with policy and procedure and approved by the infrastructure planning committee.

•	 Payroll: Ensure payroll and superannuation processes are efficient and effective, 
comply with the Financial Management Act (2006), relevant Treasurer’s Instructions 
and relevant awards and agreements.

•	 District Offices: High level review of all operational and administrative processes at 
district level to ensure they are consistent with FESA policy and procedures.

Audit Committee
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Consultative Committees

Bush Fire Service Consultative Committee

The Bush Fire Service Consultative Committee (BFSCC), chaired by Mr Bruce Brennan, 
APM, comprises 14 members with a diverse range of bush fire experience. FESA, the 
Department of Environment and Conservation, Western Australia Local Government 
Association and the Association of Volunteer Bush Fire Brigades are represented, as 
are all regions by District Officers Advisory Committee (DOAC) members.

The BFSCC met three times in 2008-09. During the year the BFSCC provided 
comment and advice to the FESA Board on a broad range of issues affecting the 
various operational areas of the Volunteer Bush Fire Service across Western Australia.

Fire and Rescue Service Consultative Committee

The Fire and Rescue Service Consultative Committee (FRSCC) is chaired by Ms Penny 
Valentine. It comprises nine members, with representatives from FESA, the Volunteer 
Fire and Rescue Services Association, United Firefighters Union and local government.

The FRSCC represents FESA Fire and Rescue Service staff and volunteers, as well 
as providing a link to local government. The committee provides input on strategic 
issues and advice in relation to policy and planning within the FESA Operational 
Services division, as well as maintaining a communication channel – through the 
FRSCC chair – between volunteers and staff in the field and the FESA Board.

The committee met three times in 2008-09. 

State Emergency Service Consultative Committee

Ms Sandra Gregorini chairs the State Emergency Service Consultative Committee 
(SESCC) which comprises 14 members, with representatives from FESA, the SES 
Volunteers Association and all regions of the State.

The SES Consultative Committee met four times during the year and worked towards 
their goal of representing and promoting SES volunteers at a strategic level.

C

Volunteer Marine Rescue Service Consultative Committee

The Volunteer Marine Rescue Services Committee (VMRSCC) is chaired by Mr 
Ross Monger and comprises 11 members, with support provided by three FESA 
employees. Volunteer Marine Rescue Western Australia (VMRWA) is represented by 
the President and Vice President and the VMRWA Regional Representatives.

The committee’s membership is closely linked to the executive and regional 
representatives of VMRWA.

The VMRSCC met four times during 2008-09.

Contracts with Senior Officers

In June 2009, FESA Chief Operations Officer, Mr Craig Hynes, declared his 
appointment to the position of Treasurer of the National Aerial Firefighting Centre 
(NAFC) Ltd.  NAFC is a not-for-profit agency responsible for distributing Australian 
government funding to the states’ fire agencies, including FESA, for effective support 
for the combating of wildfires through national co-operative arrangements for aerial 
firefighting. 

At the date of reporting, other than normal contracts of employment of service, no 
other senior officers, or firms of which senior officers are members, or entities in which 
senior officers have substantial interests had any interests in existing or proposed 
contracts with FESA.

Indemnity Insurance

An insurance policy is taken out to indemnify members of the FESA Board, directors 
and officers against any liability incurred under sections 13 or 14 of the Statutory 
Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996.

The amount of the insurance premium paid for 2008-09 was $20,185.
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